BIG IDEAS. PERFECT LOCATIONS.

TABLE OF CONTENTS
PART A: GENERAL INFORMATION					
General information...................................................................................................................................................................4
List of abbreviations/ acronyms.............................................................................................................................................5
Foreword by the MEC..............................................................................................................................................................6
Foreword by the Chairperson................................................................................................................................................7
Chief Executive Officer’s overview......................................................................................................................................8
Statement of responsibility and confirmation of accuracy for the Annual Report.............................................11
Strategic overview.....................................................................................................................................................................12
Organisational structure.........................................................................................................................................................14

PART B: PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

		

Auditor-General’s report: Predetermined objectives.................................................................................................18
Situational analysis....................................................................................................................................................................19
Performance information by programme........................................................................................................................23
Revenue collection...................................................................................................................................................................33

PART C: GOVERNANCE
Introduction................................................................................................................................................................................36
Composition of the Board....................................................................................................................................................37
Board Committees..................................................................................................................................................................39
Risk management......................................................................................................................................................................42
Internal Control.........................................................................................................................................................................43
Compliance with laws and regulations..............................................................................................................................45
Fraud and corruption..............................................................................................................................................................45
Minimising conflict of interest...............................................................................................................................................45
Code of Conduct......................................................................................................................................................................45
Health, safety and environmental issues...........................................................................................................................45
Company secretary..................................................................................................................................................................45
Social responsibility..................................................................................................................................................................46
Internal Audit and Audit Committee.................................................................................................................................46

PART D: HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT 		
Introduction...............................................................................................................................................................................50
Human resource oversight statistics...................................................................................................................................51

Statement of Responsibility...................................................................................................................................................56
Report of the Directors.........................................................................................................................................................57
Report of the Auditor General...........................................................................................................................................59
Corporate Government Report.........................................................................................................................................63
Audit and Risk Committee....................................................................................................................................................73
Statement of Financial Position............................................................................................................................................74
Statement of Comprehensive Income...............................................................................................................................75
Statement of Changes in Equity...........................................................................................................................................76
Cash Flow Statement..............................................................................................................................................................77
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements......................................................................................................................78
Unaudited Supplementary Schedule ..............................................................................................................................101

BIG IDEAS. PERFECT LOCATIONS.

GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

PART E: FINANCIAL INFORMATION

01

PART A

GENERAL
INFORMATION

GENERAL INFORMATION
Registered name

Gauteng Film Commission (GFC)

Registration number

2001/01303/08

VAT registration number

4060209766

NPC registration number

930018843

Country of incorporation and domicile

South Africa

Physical address

35 Rissik Street,
Johannesburg
2108

Postal address

P.O. Box 61601
Marshalltown
2107

Telephone number

+27(0) 11 833 0409

E-mail address

info@gautengfilm.org.za

Website

www.gautengfilm.org.za

Auditor

Auditor-General of South Africa

Banker

Absa Bank Limited

Company/Board Secretary

Ms Anthea Mokoena

Directors

Ms Busi Mhaga (Chairperson of the Board)
Mr Eddie Mbalo (Deputy Chairperson of the Board)
Ms Simangele Sekgobela (Acting CEO)
Mr David Bensusan
Ms Joy Ngoma
Mr Keith Khoza
Mr Clarence Hamilton
Mr Elliot Maluleke PA (SA) & AGA (SA)
Mr Andile Mbeki
168/2019

ISBN

978-0-621-47433-6

GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

PR number

4

BIG IDEAS. PERFECT LOCATIONS.

AGSA

Auditor-General of South Africa

APP

Annual Performance Plan

CEO

Chief Executive Officer

CPA

Commercial Producers Association

CFO

Chief Financial Officer

DFA

Documentary Film Association

DSACR

Gauteng Department of Sport, Art, Culture, and Recreation

GCIA

Gauteng Creative Industry Agency

GDP

Gross Domestic Product

GFC

Gauteng Film Commission

GRAP

Generally Recognised Accounting Practice

HR

Human Resources

IAS

International Accounting Standards

IBFC

Independent Black Filmmakers Collective

ICT

Information and Communication Technology

IFRS

International Financial Reporting Standards

KPI

Key Performance Indicator

King (IV)

King Report on Corporate Governance

MEC

Member of the Executive Council

MTEF

Medium-Term Expenditure Framework

MTSF

Medium-Term Strategic Framework

NPC

Non-Profit Company

PBC

Premiers Budget Council

PDI

Previously Disadvantaged Individual

PFMA

Public Finance Management Act, Act No. 1 of 1999

SARS

South African Revenue Services

SCM

Supply Chain Management

SWIFT

Sisters Working in Film and TV

TOR

Terms of Reference

VAT

Value-Added Tax

ZAR

South African Rand

GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS

BIG IDEAS. PERFECT LOCATIONS.

05

FOREWORD
BY THE MEC
MBALI HLOPHE
MEC

The Gauteng Film Commission holds the mandate to
develop, modernise and transform the audio-visual
landscape of the Gauteng Province. We aim to position
Gauteng as the preferred destination for filmmaking.
Film and the visual arts are a powerful conveyor of culture,
a tool for education and a craft for entertainment and
leisure. Where governments plan to drive development,
part of the agenda must entail film-making as a strategic
economic opportunity and an industry of choice.
The Film and Television industry is critical on three levels;
the social, political and economic. The industry also plays
an important role in communicating ideas, transferring
information, entrench patriotism and fostering social
cohesion.
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In this connection, Gauteng has identified film industry
as a priority sector with excellent prospects for growth.
In Gauteng, film-making will be regarded as a catalyst
for both direct and indirect employment of people from
various sectors of our economy.
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Through the GFC, we are telling our own stories, we
are flying our flag and realising the common identity of
a nation rich in unity, diversity and social-cohesion. By
growing Gauteng together, we are growing a nation,
we are seeking out a common nationhood and creating
an ‘enabling environment’ for the production of local
content. Going forward the GFC will expand and
leverage its brand promise to partner with other spheres
of government, agencies as well as the private sector to
achieve the desired impact.
I am pleased with the role the GFC has played in the
last year and look forward to working together with
the Board to improve our offering and incorporate the
objectives of the 6th Administration.
BIG IDEAS. PERFECT LOCATIONS.

The GFC has done particularly well in contributing to the
provincial Deliverology programme targets. Through the
Joburg Film Festival and Africa Rising Film Festival we have
increased awareness of locally developed films, reaching
a targeted span of 3577 and 7923 individual participants
respectively.
This fiscal year, the GFC expanded its offering to provide
support to emerging filmmakers in all five corridors. This
was realised through Film Forums in each corridor thus
encouraging filmmakers to collaborate for sustainabledevelopment of the Gauteng film industry.
The establishment of our in-house Post-production
service is a great example of how the GFC is creating
an enabling environment for young filmmakers to access
facilities at no cost. Going forward we will also endeavour
to ensure that GFC has presence in our libraries as part
of our “libraries of the future” concept.
I am confident that with all these achievements, progress
and the plans envisaged, the GFC is fit and agile to set the
Gauteng film industry aflame with opportunity.
I am filled with great expectation that the GFC’s mandate
of supporting economic development, promoting social
cohesion and nation building will remain our goal in creating
a non-racial, non-sexist, just and prosperous film industry.
I wish the Board and the entire GFC staff well in delivering
their mandate in the 6th Administration.

________________

Mbali Hlophe
Member of the Executive Council (MEC): Sport, Art,
Culture, and Recreation
Date: 31 July, 2019

FOREWORD
BY THE
CHAIRPERSON
BUSI MHAGA
CHAIRPERSON

Eddie Mbalo, Clarence Hamilton and I joined David
Bensusan, Kieth Khoza, Joy Ngoma and Simangele
Sekgobela (Acting CEO) in May 2018 as new members
of the Board.
In November, we strengthened the skills of the Board
through the Audit and the Renumeration Committee.
Ephenia Moeti-Mothlamme and Lebo Ndadana joined the
Audit Committee and Lufuno Nematswerani joined Remco.

Overview of the GFC’s strategy and
performance
In the past year we concentrated on reviewing the work
of the last term in preparation for the 2020 -2025 strategy.
We made a decision to remain a Non- Profit organization
and we started interrogating the renumeration costs of
the organization with the aim to reduce them significantly.
GFC has achieved majority of its strategic objectives and
has continued to support the emerging filmmakers. The
organisation has reached 20 703 individuals and trained
2814 individuals in the film industry. However, we need
to strengthen the positioning of Gauteng as a preferred
production destination for high budget productions as
these provide highly needed job opportunities across
the value chain and contribute to the Gross Geographic
Product of Gauteng.
We would like to congratulate the CEO and the CFO for
continuing to achieve a clean audit as well as the Audit and
Risk Committee under Chairperson Petersan Mothudi.
We would also like to thank him for the dedication he
showed in the last 10 years and wish him well as his term
is coming to and end.

The year ahead
The Board together with Management will finalise
developing the 2020-2025 strategy and a process of
restructuring the organization will commence. The CEO
position will be filled and the Board will continue to work
on governance matters and bring about stability in the
organisation.

Acknowledgements
The Board of Directors and I would like to thank MEC
Faith Mazibuko for the leadership and the direction she
provided in the previous term of office and welcome and
congratulate MEC Mbali Hlophe, we are grateful for the
support she has shown.
We would like to thank the HOD and the Department’s
support in delivering our mandate as an organisation.
The Board would also like to thank the Acting CEO Ms
Sekgobela, the Management and the staff of GFC. The year
ahead will need passion, skill and the desire to contribute
to the development of the film sector in the province.
Finally I would like to acknowledge my fellow Board
Members for their immense contribution, their guidance
and support in the previous year and going forward.
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On behalf of the Board, I am pleased to present the
annual report for the year ended 31 March 2019.

_________________

Busi Mhaga
Chairperson of the Board
Date: 31 July, 2019
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CHIEF
EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S
OVERVIEW
REPORT OF THE
ACCOUNTING OFFICER

GENERAL FINANCIAL REVIEW

REGISTRATION AS A PUBLIC ENTITY

The GFC has continued to support the industry
through numerous initiatives and in establishing strategic
partnerships, which will augment the financial support
provided during 2018/’19. The GFC receives its allocation
through the Department of Sport, Art, Culture, and
Recreation (DSACR).

The Board took a decision to retain GFC’s status as a
Non-Profit Company as opposed to registering it as a
public entity. Management will conduct further research
as to the pros and cons of registering the GFC as a public
entity.

The budget allocation for 2018/19 was R34,4 million
(2017/’18:R29 million), increasing the revenue by 18,6%
from the previous financial year.
Total assets increased by R111,183 during the current
financial year under review. The total is R1,449,289
(2018/’19) compared to R1,338,106 (2017/’18). The
increase is as a result of cash and cash equivalents, trade,
and other receivables.

SPENDING TRENDS

GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION
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The GFC was allocated an additional budget of R4 million
during the adjustment period. This budget was specifically
meant to be used to support film festivals and to provide
production support to emerging filmmakers. This amount
helped revise the baseline for the 2019/’20 budget.
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The total budget allocated to the GFC after adjustment
was R34,4 million; of that, 95% was spent.
The GFC is still showing a deficit in its financial statements.
This is due to the accrued leave liability and invoices that
were not received as at the end of the financial year.
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OFFICE MOVE
The GFC moved offices in September 2018, from 56 Main
Street to 35 Rissik Street, the home of the Department
of Sport, Art, Culture, and Recreation. There were
savings that were realised from this move as the GFC did
not have to pay for overheads such as rent, water, and
electricity. The money saved was redirected to projects
to benefit filmmakers.

APPOINTMENT OF A NEW BOARD
The terms of some Board members came to an end in
2018, and this necessitated their replacements. A new
Board was appointed and their term of office will end
in 2021.

CAPACITY CONSTRAINTS AND
CHALLENGES
The vacancies created by the resignation of the Finance
Officer, Research Manager, Marketing Manager and
Project Manager could not be filled as we needed to
finalise the Enhanced Organisational Strategy first to
inform the review of the organisational structure.

For the first time, the GFC participated at the South
African Film and Television Awards (SAFTAS), sponsoring
the Best Technical Feature Film award category. This was
a milestone for the GFC to be able to participate at a
national level, and we will continue to be involved.

OUTBOUND MISSIONS
The GFC will partner with the National Film and Video
Foundation (NFVF) on outbound missions within the
continent of Africa and internationally. These outbound
missions will ensure that Gauteng will be promoted as
the best destination for film and television locations.

NATIONAL FILM AND TV SUMMIT
The GFC participated in the National Film and TV
Summit with the Department of Arts and Culture in
February, 2018. The aim of the summit was to engage
with the industry to identify challenges and develop a
plan to address them.
The theme of the summit was Transformation and
Innovation in the South African Film/Audio-Visual
Industry.
The key sub-themes were:
·
·
·
·
·

Owning the South African storyline;
Policy, structure, and institutions;
Disruption and innovation in the value chain;
Funding and resourcing for growth; and
Empowerment, inclusivity, and capacity building.

NEW AND DISCONTINUED ACTIVITIES
The new project that was introduced was the postproduction and research facility, targeting marginalised,
emerging filmmakers, which was piloted at the GFC
offices, with the rollouts expected to be implemented
in other regional facilities. No programmes were
discontinued.

ECONOMIC VIABILITY
In the year under review, the GFC continued to refine the
draft Enhancement Strategy, with an aim to incorporate
it into the five-year strategy for the new administration.
The strategy aims to reposition the Commission to
ensure that it attains maximum impact in the industry in
spite of its limited resources.

According to an industry analysis from a global
perspective, there is no evidence that suggests that there
are any other film commissions around the globe that
generate revenue. In order for a film commission to be
able to generate revenue as part of ensuring its economic
sustainability, it has to provide a product or service that is
of commercial value, which the industry role-players are
willing and able to pay a fee towards its consumption. If
no such product or service exists, an investment has to
be made first, so that it addresses industry-wide demands
from a commercial point of view. At the moment, the
services that film commissions around the world render
do not necessarily imply that commissions have the
ability to generate revenue in the absence of a product
or service that can be sold. Research further shows that
revenue generation in the film value chain is only possible
at the distribution stage.
This is the late stage that is preceded by pre-production,
production, and post-production stages. As such, this
factor further reduces the chances of a catalytic entity,
such as a film commission, to be able to generate profit.
The GFC intends to commission a research study that
will inform it on the feasibility of raising additional funds
from alternative sources, targeting conditional grants and
Corporate Social Investment (CSI) programmes, as well
exploring co-funding partnerships with relevant training
institutions. These strategic interventions will enable the
GFC to stop relying on Government as the only source
of funding, which is currently the case and has been since
the inception of the Commission. At the same time, these
strategic partnership interventions are aimed at raising
funds from alternative sources, which will allow the GFC
to fortify the Commission’s financial capacity to support
filmmakers more while being economically sustainable.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT
The GFC Supply Chain Management (SCM) was
reviewed and streamlined to assist the entity to fulfil its
procurement obligations of preferential consideration
given to historically disadvantaged individuals. The policy
sets its targets consistent with the provisions of the Public
Financial Management Act (PFMA) and its regulations.

AUDIT REPORT MATTERS
In relation to the 2018/’19 Internal Audit annual plan,
the following audits were approved: Performance Audit;
Human Resources Audit; Financial Management Audit;
and IT Vulnerability Audit. All action plans related to
matters raised by the Auditor General in the 2017/’18
financial year external audit have been addressed.
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OUTLOOK
In the year ahead, the Commission will continue focusing
on the development and support of emerging filmmakers,
as well as the marketing of the province as the focal area.
GFC recognises the need to focus more on developmental
programmes for the film and television industry as part of
its mandate and the Enhanced Strategy.
GFC’s strategic objectives are aligned to the National
Developmental Plan (NDP), the Provincial 10 Pillar
Programme, and DSACR’s mandate of driving social
cohesion programmes for Gauteng. GFC will continue
to work closely with the Department in delivering highimpact, integrated programmes showcasing locallyproduced creative works through commemorative
celebrations in honour of our heroes and heroines.
The highlight for 2019 was the provincial and national
elections. This process saw a new administration taking
office. With it, there are new priority areas and a five-year
strategy will be developed based on the new Gauteng
priorities. We do not anticipate big policy changes.
The GFC is currently developing the next Five-Year
Strategy, whose purpose is to redefine its role in the
industry and ensure that it actively assumes a centre
stage in the film value chain in Gauteng. As a result,
GFC has prioritised the establishment of two additional
film post-production and research facilities within the
identified Gauteng regions during the 2019/20 financial
year in partnership with the Department of Sport, Art,
Culture, and Recreation. This will target and enable
young, previously disadvantaged filmmakers to access
cutting-edge facilities to complete their projects under
the guidance and mentorship of the GFC. The facilities
are planned to be established in Diepsloot and within the
Women’s Living Monument in Tshwane.

GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION
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Part of the Strategy is to leverage on strategic partnerships
due to the expanding mandate for regionalising access to
Government services. The GFC received an additional
R4 million during the adjustment process. This additional
budget assisted us in achieving more on our set targets,
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thus having a presence in major broadcasters. The GFC
participates in the South African Audio-Visual Forum
(SAAVF), co-ordinated by the Department of Trade
and Industry. The forum comprises of all Government
Departments and national and film agencies mandated to
support the audio-visual industry.
Strategic partnerships for co-production, broadcast
platforms, content distribution, and skills development will
be enhanced to deliver on set objectives in collaboration
with industry players and studios.
A number of significant partnerships were supported in
2018/19, in particular with MNET (Mzansi Magic); Trace
TV; Black Entertainment Television (BET); and the South
African Broadcasting Corporation (SABC 1 and 2) for
broadcast and distribution. Public awareness will be
elevated in townships through various campaigns that
promote access to GFC’s services and job opportunities
within the industry. In the new administration, the GFC
will implement the Strategy as a critical success factor
to deliver on its mandate. It will cultivate, facilitate, and
enhance an environment that allows the audio-visual
industry to play a meaningful role in the socio-economic
development of Gauteng.

TAX EXEMPTION
SARS has exempted the GFC from paying Income tax.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
I would like to acknowledge the contribution of the
Board of Directors for their stewardship and the GFC
management and staff for their commitment to achieve
the targets and to deliver on the mandate. The overall
performance bears testimony to our collective teamwork.

___________________

Simangele Sekgobela
(Acting) CEO
Date: 31 July, 2019

Statement of responsibility and confirmation of
accuracy for the Annual Report

·
·
·
·

·
·

·

All information and amounts disclosed in the Annual
Report are consistent with the Annual Financial
Statements audited by the Auditor-General;
The Annual Report is complete, accurate, and free
from any omissions;
The Annual Report has been prepared in accordance
with the Annual Report Guide for Schedule 3A and
3C Public Entities as issued by National Treasury;
The Annual Financial Statements (Part E) have been
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act of
South Africa, Act No. 71 of 2008, and all standards
applicable to the GFC;
The Accounting Authority is responsible for the
preparation of the Annual Financial Statements and
the judgments made therein;
The Accounting Authority is responsible for
establishing and implementing a system of internal
control, which is designed to provide reasonable
assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the
performance information, Human Resources (HR)
information, and Annual Financial Statements; and
The Auditor-General of South Africa (AGSA) is
engaged to express an independent opinion on the
Annual Financial Statements.

In our opinion, the Annual Report fairly reflects
the operations, the performance information, HR
information, and the financial affairs of the GFC for the
financial year ended 31 March, 2019.
Yours faithfully

___________________
Simangele Sekgobela
(Acting) CEO
Date: 31 July, 2019

___________________

Busi Mhaga
Chairperson of the Board
Date: 31 July, 2019
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To the best of our knowledge and belief, we confirm
the following:
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Strategic overview
Vision
Making Gauteng an innovative, world-class hub for the
audio-visual industry.
Mission
To cultivate, facilitate, and enhance an environment that
allows the audio-visual industry to play a meaningful role
in the socio-economic development of Gauteng.
Values
In working towards the achievement of the mandate and
vision set out above, the GFC subscribes to the following
internal values:
- Leadership integrity;
- Efficiency, accountability, and transparency;
- Progressive and innovative;
- Passion, excellence, and commitment; and
- People development and empowerment.

STRATEGIC GOALS OF THE GFC

GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION
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The strategic goals of the GFC were developed as a
response to the mandate of the DSACR, the objects
of the NDP, the revised mandate of the Provincial
Government, as well as the key macro- and micro-
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environment challenges and strategic issues that the
GFC should address. Furthermore, given the need to
ensure synergy and seamless integration, these high-level
strategic objectives are aligned to both the DSACR and
the 14 provincial MTSF Outcomes.
In support of its mandate, the overarching aim of the GFC
is to cultivate, facilitate, and enhance an environment that
allows the creative industries to play a meaningful role in
the socio-economic development of Gauteng.

THE GFC’S RESPONSE TO THE OUTCOMESBASED APPROACH
Due to the fact that creative industries are a lever
for promotion of social cohesion and nation-building,
the GFC contributes to Provincial Outcome 14: “To
promote social cohesion and nation-building.” The GFC
equally considers its critical and clearly targeted role in
support of the attainment of Outcome 4: “Decent work
and inclusive economic growth.” The Annual Report of
2018/’19 continues to be aligned to the NDP and linkages
to the Gauteng Provincial Government’s 10 Pillars.

GFC’S CONTRIBUTION TO THE GAUTENG
PROVINCIAL GOVERNMENT’S 10 PILLAR
PROGRAMME
Please note that out of ten GPG pillars, the GFC contributes to six, which are listed below:
GPG 10 Pillars

GFC Contribution in 2018/’19

1. Radical economic transformation

Provided training opportunities for 2,814 individuals through eighteen (18)
training initiative partnerships. Twenty-five (25) emerging filmmakers have been
mentored and developed through the following disciplines: Director; Assistant
Director; Sound; Camera; Still Photographer; Producing and presenting; and
Screenings at different locations across the Gauteng city region.
Supported the development and production of local content by
supporting twenty (20) productions, which resulted in the creation of
1,291 jobs.
Establishment of in-house post-production has allowed the GFC to pilot and
empower emerging filmmakers with tools that will contribute to their economic
emancipation. Seventeen (17) filmmakers benefitted from this initiative.

2. Decisive spatial transformation

The concept of regionalising access to government services has provided GFC
with an opportunity to have a presence in communities. This was achieved
through public awareness campaigns that reached thirteen (13) townships and
empowered 1,236 emerging filmmakers.

3. Accelerated social transformation

In this fiscal, we supported skills development initiatives such as MakeUp; Motion Picture; Set Design; and Script-Writing. These contributed to
accelerated social transformation.
GFC continued in its endeavour to develop productions; one of the key
highlights was supporting a filmmaker who has a hearing impairment. An
opportunity was also granted to 45 LGBTQ individuals who attended a week
long Basetsana Scriptwriting and Directing boot camp.

5. Modernisation of the public service

Application of permits and locations have been made seamless; location scouts
can now access the service through our website.
Projects funding disbursement turnaround is executed in a period between
15 – 30 days.

6. Modernisation of the economy

Supported distribution of film productions earmarked for film festivals, cinema
release, and digital distribution platforms.

GFC contributed to the revitalisation of Gauteng’s township economies through partnership and participation in the
film industry value chain to develop local enterprises within the sector. The GFC also provided opportunities and
mentored young filmmakers throughout the film value chain (from script-writing, directing, animation, and support
services such as equipment set design and make-up). In addition, the GFC facilitated employment, particularly of
the youth and women. In the coming year, the GFC will prioritise people living with disabilities to participate in the
mainstream film industry.

Legislative and other mandates
The GFC is mandated to develop and promote the audio-visual industries in Gauteng and to facilitate all film-related
projects within the DSACR. Despite being registered as a non-profit company (NPC) in terms of the Companies Act,
Act No. 71 of 2008, the GFC is mandated to comply with the PFMA and other applicable Government regulations.
BIG IDEAS. PERFECT LOCATIONS.
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Matwetwe, one of the best local performing films released in February, which
achieved a Box Office result of over R6,500,000.
Partnered with a dynamic digital distribution platform, Rootslink, which focuses
on representing content produced by emerging filmmakers.
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Auditor–General’s Report: Predetermined objectives
The entity is not required to prepare a report on
its performance against predetermined objective, as
it does not fall within the ambit of the Public Finance
Management Act (PFMA) and such reporting is also not
required in terms of the entity specific legislation.
Refer to page 59 of the Auditor’s Report, published
under Part E: Financial information.

Situational analysis
The film and television industry continues to play an
important role in the provincial economy, as it supports
Gauteng’s shift from a primary manufacturing economy
to a knowledge-based service economy. The industry is
becoming increasingly acknowledged, both internationally
and nationally, as an important economic engine,
especially in terms of the National Industrial Development
Framework. In many comparable international markets,
the film and television industry has reported fasterthan-average employment growth. Investment in film
and television results in direct investment in intellectual
capital, a product that can result in a return on investment
for many years to come. The industry attracts and retains
highly-educated and highly-skilled people in a variety of
well-paid, quality, and ‘green’ jobs. Compared to the rest
of South Africa, Gauteng has the highest proportion
of such workers and retaining this intellectual capital,
therefore, becomes a strategic imperative for the longterm competitiveness of the province in the wider media
and entertainment sectors.

GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION
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For various reasons, these strengths are not optimally
leveraged, in particular accessibility by emerging
filmmakers. If a sector-wide shift does not take place, the
industry will remain fragmented, with weak production
volumes and constrained funding and distribution
opportunities. Such a low growth-scenario will result
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in Gauteng losing its ability to compete with rising film
production hubs elsewhere in the country and around
the world.
The National Film and Video Foundation (NFVF)
concluded a study in 2017, which focused on the economic
impact of legitimate films distributed across traditional
and new distribution platforms over the past four years.
The study shows economic impact and the effects of film.
The results from the economic impact modelling reveal
that the film industry has a positive economic impact on
the South African economy.
A shift in how the GFC has traditionally implemented its
services to the industry requires continuous assessment
for the Commission to remain relevant. It is over 25
years since the dawn of democracy, and the film sector
has not fully transformed to increase the number of
production companies that are owned by Previously
Disadvantaged Individuals (PDIs). Hence, the GFC is
reviewing its strategy to change the tide through new
and innovative programmes that will be outlined in the
five year Strategic Plan.
The GFC intends to deliver the proposed priority
programmes using current capacity, with an increased
focus on core programme funding and output. In order
to achieve the GFC’s mandate, the agency will continue
to work with the industry role players and other key
stakeholders to ensure the development of a sustainable
audio-visual industry.

Service delivery environment
The GFC’s strategic objectives are aligned to the
National Developmental Plan (NDP), the Provincial

Below is the film industry SWOT analysis:

Industry SWOT analysis:
STRENGTHS

WEAKNESSES

· World-class infrastructure and sound technical
expertise.
· Well-established broadcast and media industry.
· Beautiful locations.
· Climate – long daylight hours.
· International interest on South Africa.
· Political stability.
· A well-functioning financial sector.

· Excessive demand for funding by filmmakers.
· An over-reliance on TV commissioning and government budgets.
· Monopoly in the distribution and broadcast channels by a few.
· Lack of co-ordinated industry strategies.
· Unsustainable production volumes.
· Lack of transformation in the industry.
· Exploitation of filmmakers’ IP by broadcasters.
· Film is not seen as a business.
· Lack of entrepreneurial skills.
· Unsustainable businesses.

OPPORTUNITIES

THREATS

· Digitisation presenting alternative distribution channels.
· Co-production opportunities.
· More appetite for local production by international
investors
· Emergence of proudly South African stories told
through Mzansi Magic, eKasi stories.

· High volumes of imported content.
· Piracy and illegal downloading.
· Low-cost destinations in Africa.
· Low economic growth.

Strategic partnerships
In an effort to have a far-reaching impact, the GFC sought
to establish ten (10) strategic partnerships to enhance its
delivery of programmes. These partnerships can mainly
be categorised as follows:

Broadcast and distribution
-

The GFC’s partnership with broadcasters has
enabled us to have a presence in SABC 1 through
a TV show called One Mic, a 13-part series; SABC
2, with a production titled Bone of my bones, which
will be broadcast in 2019 on Wednesdays. We also
had a presence on Mzansi Magic, wherein we had six
(6) productions supported through productions for
broadcast; on Trace TV and BET for the biopic of
Lebo Mathosa.

Developmental
-

The Africa Rising Film Festival partnership that was
linked to the centenary celebration of Nelson Mandela.
A partnership with NFVF as a national body to be
able to collaborate on projects they are implanting
in Gauteng and international missions.

Productions supported
-

A partnership with Jack and Jill Productions for the
local and international release of the film.
A partnership with AAA Entertainment for
collaboration in formulation of the annual distribution
forum.
A partnership with Sky Rink Studios for provision of
post-production facilities and access to studio facilities.

Film locations and permits process formalise for
municipalities
To enhance one of the core GFC services at local level
and to ensure that regular fees are paid to local municipal
authorities across the Gauteng city region. This initiative
was undertaken to attract more productions and curb
illegal shoots.
The GFC was working with two (2) municipalities, firstly
the City of Johannesburg (COJ), as well as Johannesburg
Metro Police Department (JMPD), and City Parks for
permit and location processes. It was concluded that
a formal submission will be made to COJ treasury to
consider reducing tariffs in the 2019/2020 financial year.
Secondly, Ekurhuleni Metropolitan Municipality finalising
a film and photographic policy aimed at providing a
conducive environment for filmmakers to access facilities.

Productions
In the year under review, the GFC funded and supported
a total of twenty (20) production companies, who in
BIG IDEAS. PERFECT LOCATIONS.
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10 Pillar Programme, and DSACR’s mandate of driving
social cohesion programmes as part of the Gauteng city
regions’ deliverables to promote and enhance nationbuilding. The GFC has continued to work closely with
the Department in delivering high-impact, integrated
programmes showcasing locally produced creative works
through various programmes, which are outlined below:

019

turn created employment for 1,291 people within the
sector. The growing appetite from emerging filmmakers
to create low-budget films inspired the GFC to introduce
a slate to service them. The majority of these films have
been assisted in acquiring license deals from broadcasters
through the assistance of the GFC.

-

The following are some of the key projects implemented:
-

Mzansi Magic licensed six (6) feature films: The
Countdown, produced by Lebugraphy Pictures;
Thembisile Wami, produced by Zinokwanda Media; and
uMalume, produced by Storyboard Productions. The
Rock, by SML Productions; Family Matters, by Kas Media,
and Isithandwa sami, by Favor media licensed.

Other productions licensed:

GFC provided six (6) companies with financial and
distribution support. This entailed contribution towards
theatrical releases and marketing of the respective films.
The following productions were implemented with the
aim of supporting the distribution of locally produced
content:

-

-
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-

Distribution

-
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Ama ATM – A film produced by See it First
Communications Agency, owned by a deaf filmmaker
based in Tshwane;
Tsa Mapitori – A documentary about the unique
Pretoria musical genre, which was extremely
popular in the late 90s,
Easy way to the fall – a film produced by Golden
Motion Film, which is about “a short film that seeks
to address social ills.”
The Prophetess – a film by Anaphora Pictures,
which is a short story adapted from Njabulo
Ndebele’s book, Fools.

Two (2) productions for broadcast were supported
and licensed by Trace TV for Human Rights PSA
and Evolution of Mzansi Hip Hop.
Three (3) were supported through SABC 2: Bone
of my bones, a 13-episode drama series produced
by Sothar Pictures for SABC 2, Papago Comedy
Club, a 13-episode comedy series produced by
Tsa Moringa for SABC 2, and Ke Zaka by Tyvision,
supported in August by SABC 2. One Day Leader, a
13-episode reality series produced by the One Day
Leader Foundation, and One Mic a 13-part series
for SABC 1.
Established Nine Nine, a 4-part documentary
series produced by Eish D Television for Kaya TV.

Farewell Ella Bella was produced by Free Women,
a 100% black female-owned company. The film was
released theatrically in this financial year;
Filmmaker SA , by Sante Media, is a 13-part series
distributed through Outdoor Commuter Platforms,
which are located in major taxi ranks;
Wasted Legacy, by Golden Eye Productions, was
assisted with DVD distribution of their film;
AAA distribution initiative, launching an annual
distribution forum that took place during the Rapid
Lion Festival.
Table manners, a theatrical distribution assistance
with Jack and Jill Productions; and
DISCOP Africa’ premiere content market;
where we supported ninety (90) filmmakers to
attend the market in order for them to interact with
international buyers and sellers.

Productions for broadcast
A total of twenty (20) productions for broadcast were
supported by the GFC:
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Forging Ahead - a documentary produced by
Tshedza Media for eTV. It’s About Time - a
6-episode drama series produced by Ochre Media
for BET. Chat Up with Tebo - a 13-episode talk
show produced by Striving Mind for Soweto TV.
David Kau’s House, by Disadvantage Background,
was supported in August by On Digital Media (for
StarSat bouquet).

Audience development
An essential part of developing awareness about the
film screening activities is to create sustained exposure
of all stakeholder groups to the film materials and use
attractive publicity materials. Twenty-two (22) audience
development initiatives were supported and attended by
20,703 individuals. Partnerships with local film festivals
contributed to inculcation of audiences for appreciation
of local content. The film festivals we partnered with are:
Ekurhuleni Township Film Festival; Joburg Film Festival;
Rapid Lion; and Africa Rising International Film Festival
to name a few.

Skills development and training
Skills development was promoted through a total of
eighteen (18) training initiatives and a total of 2,814
individuals were trained within the film industry. More
individuals trained was as a result of additional film
festivals supported after budget adjustment.

Twenty-five emerging filmmakers have been mentored
and developed through the following disciplines: Director;
Assistant Director; Sound; Camera; Still Photographer;
Producing and presenting; and Screenings at different
locations across the Gauteng city region.

Post-production and research hub
A post-production and research hub as an in-house
facility was piloted and established within the GFC office
to provide access for emerging filmmakers. Eight (8)
production companies and seventeen (17) individuals
were able to access the facility in the fourth quarter of
2018/’19. Under-achievement was due to office relocation
and delayed to operationalise the Kagiso and the Women
Living Monuments, which were planned to house two (2)
additional facilities in 2018/’19.

Film permits

GFC facilitated 100 percent of the permits received (153
permits) in the year under review by enhancing one of

the core GFC services at local level. This ensured that
regular fees are paid to local municipal authorities across
the Gauteng city region.

Productions supported – marketing
GFC supported thirteen (13) productions with marketing
material for promotion of local content through the
different platforms during 2018/’19. The following
films were supported during the year in review: The
Tokoloshe; Adventures of Super Mama; The Storyteller
Pod; Womb Dance; Night of the Massacre Premier; and
Ko Kanga Premiere.

Export missions
The GFC participated at the Durban International Film
Festival (DIFF) from 19 – 29 July, 2018. The participation
entailed attendance of the Durban International Film
Festival; an exhibition at the Durban Filmmart; support
of Gauteng’s emerging filmmakers who will be attending
Talent Campus at DIFF; meeting with key SA, African,
and international industry stakeholders at Durban
International Film Festival; participation and official
presence at networking events organised by Durban
International Film Festival; sponsoring of awards at
DIFF; stakeholder engagement through speaking and
presenting opportunities via the GFC; participation at
panel discussions; and attendance of film screenings,
including those supported by the GFC.

Film awards
During 2018/19, the GFC supported four (4) film awards,
namely: the Durban International Film Festival for SA Best
Short and Africa’s Best Short film; the Wits Student Film
Awards; The South African Film and Television Awards
(SAFTA) for the Best Technical Feature Film category;
and the Rapid Lion Award, which was held at the Market
Theatre, Johannesburg.

Awareness campaigns
The GFC initiated thirteen (13) township public
awareness campaigns pertaining to issues that are holding
unemployed youth from breaking into the film and
television industry. The campaigns were also in the form
of information sharing workshops about the GFC and
opportunities that are available in the film and television
industry. The initiative reached 1,236 individuals from
localities: KwaThema; Duduza; Protea Glen; Devon;
Winterveldt; Meadowlands; Evaton, Kasi Career Expo
in Soshanguve and in Tembisa, Ekurhuleni at the Get
Informed Centre.

Industry associations
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The GFC provided a platform for aspiring filmmakers who
cannot afford exorbitant film studies tuition by providing
courses and workshops. The following are some of the
key projects implemented:
Supported emerging filmmakers who cannot afford
conventional film school fees, as they are exorbitant
to attend; Motion Picture training at City Varsity.
Set Design training, which took place in Carletonville,
provided an opportunity for young people in the area
to be exposed to designing of sets for production.
New Film Incentives roadshow, in partnership with
Dti, took place at the Sky Rink Studios in Johannesburg
and the Sammy Marks Library Auditorium Tshwane
respectively.
The GFC partnered with Sisters Working in Film
and TV to provide sexual harassment training at the
Market Theatre in Johannesburg.
Leaders in Motion Academy provided motion
picture and entrepreneurship training to aspiring
filmmakers and practitioners at the South African
Creative Industries Incubator in Eersterust, Tshwane.
Basetsana Directing and Script-writing Camp,
which took place in Bronkhorstspruit. This was a
7-day camp in the West Rand in partnership with
the Department of Sports, Arts, Culture, and
Recreation. The initiative provided 200 aspiring
female and LGBTIQ film/theatre Directors and
Script-writers with an opportunity to be trained in
this field by qualified film practitioners.
Make-Up Incubation - a three-month incubation
programme from September to November,
followed by job placement for three months.
·
Emerging filmmakers’ mentorship:
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In the year under review, the GFC supported the following
industry associations: Writer’s Guild of SA (WGSA). The
Writer’s Guild is an association that supports writers in the
film industry, and we supported their writers’ workshop
in Vanderbijlpark; Sisters Working in Film and Television
(SWIFT), an advocacy organisation for women in the film
industry. We supported their event during the Africa
Arise Festival, and Commercial Producers Association
(CPA), whereby we facilitated the engagement between
CPA and the Maboneng Civil Association.

Branding partnerships
In an effort to promote the GFC, the following branding
partnerships were executed in 2018/19: Babu Mfundisi
Movie Premiere at the Durban International Film Festival
(DIFF); Basha Uhuru festival at Constitutional Hill; Arnold
Classic Games Africa at Sandton Convention Centre;
and Youth Month Expo in Nasrec, in partnership with
DSACR.

Organisational environment
The GFC will consolidate the work done in the enhanced
strategy in to the five year Strategic Plan (2020 - 2025).
The GFC had undertaken to get listed as a public entity.
However, after extensive engagements with Treasury
and DSACR, it was concluded that the Commission will
stay in its current form due to the benefits it attains as a
Non-Profit Company (NPC).
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The stability at leadership level has already had a
tremendous impact on the GFC’s performance. Most
of the targets were achieved, while in some instances,
these targets were exceeded. This is reported in full in
the performance information by programme section of
the Annual Report.
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Key policy developments and legislative changes
During the reporting period, no new policies were
developed, and there was no change in legislation that
would have impacted on the operations of the GFC. The
completion of the National White paper on Arts and
Culture is highly anticipated in the forthcoming financial
year.

Strategic outcome-oriented goals
·
·
·
·
·
·

To establish the GFC as a public entity;
To transform and modernise the audio-visual
landscape;
Development of the industry;
Job creation;
Knowledge management and innovation; and
Institutional excellence.

Programme 1: Industry support and development
The aim of the Industry Support and Development unit
is to develop and support the audio-visual industry in
Gauteng by creating an enabling environment.
The film value chain has four (4) distinct phases:
·
Pre-production (conceptualisation);
·
Research and script development,
·
Production (principal photography), postproduction (visual and sound editing), and
·
Distribution.
Strategic objectives:
·
Supporting audio-visual industry initiatives with an
emphasis on the whole value chain.
·
Supporting initiatives aimed at required skills
development and mentorship programmes in the
industry, focusing on the previously marginalised.

Performance information by programme
Performance against strategic objectives
Actual
achievement
2016/2017

Actual
achievement
2017/2018

Planned
target
2018/2019

Comment on
Actual
Deviation
deviations
achievement from planned
2018/2019
target to actual
achievement
for 2018/2019

Supporting audiovisual industry
initiatives with an
emphasis on the
whole value chain

Twelve (12)
productions
supported and
funded by the
GFC

17

19

20

+1

Over-achievement
was due to the
adjusted budget
for productions
supported.

Supporting
initiatives aimed
at required skills
development
and mentorship
programmes
in the industry,
focusing on
the previously
marginalised

422 temporary
jobs created

968

570

1 291

+721

The increase in
temporary jobs
created was
due to adjusted
targets after PBC
allocation.
The target was
achieved within
the allocated
budget.

22 627
audiences
reached through
exhibitions of
local content.

14 618

18 500

20 703

+2 203

The additional
2 203 individuals
reached was
due to budget
adjustment
received for film
festivals.

450

2 814

2 364

The extra
individuals
reached was
due to additional
film festivals
supported after
PBC adjustment
budget.
The target was
achieved within
the allocated
adjustment
budget.

417 individuals
963
trained and
developed
in the film
industry towards
‘employability’
and participation
within the sector
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Strategic
objective
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Key performance indicators, planned targets, and actual achievements
Performance
indicator

Actual
achievement
2016/2017

Actual
achievement
2017/2018

Planned
target
2018/2019

Actual
achievement
2018/2019

Annual
target
assessment
2018/2019

Deviation
from planned
target to actual
achievement
for 2018/2019

Comment on
deviations

Number
of strategic
partnerships
established

3

8

10

10

Target
achieved

None

Not applicable

Number of
municipalities
assisted through
IGR to formalise
film locations
and permit
processes

-

-

2

2

Target
achieved

None

Not applicable

Number of
productions
funded by the
GFC

12

17

19

20

Target
achieved

+1

Overachievement
was due to
adjusted budget
for productions
supported.
The target was
achieved within
the allocated
budget.

4

4

6

6

Target
achieved

None

Not applicable

Number of
productions
for broadcast
platforms
supported

10

10

20

20

Target
achieved

None

Not applicable.
Target was
adjusted in line
with budget
adjustment.

Number of
film permits for
productions
facilitated

170

209

100%

100%

Target
achieved

None

Not applicable

Number of
temporary jobs
directly created
in the sector

422

968

570

1 291

Target
achieved

+721

The increase
was a result of
jobs created
through
productions
supported and
mainly from
productions for
broadcast.
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Number
of projects
implemented
to support the
distribution of
locally filmed
content
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The target was
achieved within
the allocated
budget.
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Performance
indicator

Actual
achievement
2016/2017

Actual
achievement
2017/2018

Planned
target
2018/2019

Actual
achievement
2018/2019

Annual
target
assessment
2018/2019

Deviation
from planned
target to actual
achievement
for 2018/2019

Comment on
deviations

Number of
audience
development
initiatives
implemented

11

17

20

22

Target
achieved

+2

The additional
two (2)
initiatives were
due to budget
adjustments
received for film
festivals.
The target was
achieved within
the allocated
budget.

22 627
Number of
individuals
reached through
exhibition of
local content

14 618

18 500

20 703

Target
achieved

2 203

The additional
individuals
reached was
due to overachievement by
two (2) audience
development
initiatives.

Number
of training
initiatives
implemented in
the film industry

13

14

18

18

Target
achieved

None

Not applicable

Number of
individuals
trained in the
film industry

417

963

450

2 814

Target
achieved

2 364

More individuals
were trained
due to additional
film festivals
supported after
PBC adjustment
budget.
The target was
achieved within
the allocated
adjustment
budget.

-

-

25

25

Target
achieved

None

Not applicable
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Number of
filmmakers
mentored and
developed
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Performance
indicator

Actual
achievement
2016/2017

Actual
achievement
2017/2018

Planned
target
2018/2019

Actual
achievement
2018/2019

Annual
target
assessment
2018/2019

Deviation
from planned
target to actual
achievement
for 2018/2019

Comment on
deviations

Number of
productions
accessing postproduction inhouse facilities
(hubs)

Not
applicable

5

2

8

Target
achieved

+6

Overachievement
was due to the
successful pilot
of the postproduction
facility located at
the GFC office.
Target was
achieved within
the allocated
budget

Number of
filmmakers
accessing postproduction inhouse facilities
(hubs)

Not
applicable

60

17

Target not
achieved

-43

Underachievement
was due to
office relocation
and delayed to
operationalise
the Kagiso
and the
Women Living
Monuments,
which were
planned to
house two
(2) additional
facilities.

The programme’s Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)
contribute to the achievement of all of the GFC’s strategic
goals. Despite the constraints experienced by the GFC,
the programme delivered almost all of its performance
targets, even exceeding on some.

Changes to planned targets

Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance
During the 2018/’19 financial year, challenges were
experienced in accessing post-production and research
facilities. The need to complete the operationalising of
the Kagiso and the Women Living Monuments, which
were planned to house two (2) additional facilities.

The targets set out above are in line with those stipulated
in the final GFC Annual Performance Plan (APP), adjusted
for 2018/’19, as approved by the Executive Authority.
There were changes to planned targets in relation to
the number of productions for broadcast platforms
supported due to the additional budget allocated.
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More promotion and awareness of the post-production
and research facility services will be undertaken going
forward.

Linking performance with budgets
Programme 1:
Industry support and
development

2018/’19

2017/’18

Budget

Actual
expenditure

(Over)/under
expenditure

Budget

Actual
expenditure

(Over)/under
expenditure

R

R

R

R

R

R

Production support

2 181 000

2 237 400

(56,400)

282 700

308 000

(25 300)

Audience Development

2 062 750

2 022 763

39 987

2 100 000

1 985 849

114 151

448 380

459 600

(11 200)

975 000

1 539 759

(564 759)

13 600

13 600

-

-

-

-

Skills Development

1 219 000

1 266 105

(47,105)

500 000

100 000

400 000

Production for Broadcast

3 545 000

3 545 000

-

870 000

802 584

67 416

Total

9 469 730

9 544 468

(74 738)

4 727 700

4 736 192

(8 492)

Distribution
Post Production and
Research Hub

Programme 2: Marketing and communication
The aim of the Marketing and Communication unit is to deliver integrated marketing and communication interventions
to both internal and external stakeholders of the organisations.
Strategic objectives:
·
·
·

To position Gauteng as an audio-visual content hub and enhance the GFC brand locally and internationally.
To promote Gauteng as a film destination of choice.
To build strategic collaborations with key industry stakeholders.

Strategic
objective

Deviation
from
planned
target
to actual
achievement
for
2018/2019

Comment
on
deviations

13

-1

No capacity
within the
unit.

1

1

None

Not
applicable.

4

4

None

Not
applicable.

Actual
achievement
2016/2017

Actual
achievement
2017/2018

Planned
target

Actual
achievement

2018/2019

2018/2019

To position
Gauteng as an
audio-visual
content hub
and enhance
the GFC brand
locally and
internationally

Twelve
(12) film
productions
supported at
festivals and
markets with
marketing
material.

12

14

To promote
Gauteng as a
film destination
of choice

One export
market
supported.

1

To build
strategic
collaborations
with key
industry
stakeholders

Three (3) film
award events
supported.

3
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Performance against strategic objectives
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Key Performance Indicators, planned targets, and actual achievements
Performance
indicator

Actual
achievement
2016/2017

Actual
achievement
2017/2018

Planned
target
2018/2019

Actual
achievement
2018/2019

Annual
target
assessment
2018/2019

Deviation
from planned
target to actual
achievement
for 2018/2019

Comment on
deviations

Number of film

12

12

14

13

Target not

-1

No capacity within

achieved.

productions

the unit.

supported
Annual Report

1

1

1

1

Target

produced
Number of

None

Not applicable.

None

Not applicable.

None

Not applicable.

-3

No capacity within

achieved.
4

4

4

4

Target
achieved.

newsletters
produced
Number of

1

1

1

1

Target
achieved.

export markets
involved in
Number of

16

16

16

13

Target not
achieved.

townships

the unit. Two (2)

covered

additional public

through public

engagements were,

awareness

however, managed

campaigns

to be executed by
the GFC.

Number of
individuals

-

-

2 000

3

3

4

1 236

Target not

-764

achieved.

No capacity within
the unit.

reached
through public
awareness
campaigns
Number of

4

Target

None

Not applicable.

None

Not applicable.

+2

Additional

achieved.

film awards
supported
Number

5

4

4

4

Target
achieved.

of industry
associations
supported
Number of

5

4

4

branding
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Target
achieved.

opportunities were

partnerships to

realised through

promote

more events and

the GFC

festivals supported.

The programme’s Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)
contribute to the achievement of all of the GFC’s strategic
goals. Despite the budgetary constraints experienced by
the Gauteng Film Commission, the programme delivered
on most of its performance targets.
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Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance
During the 2018/’19 financial year, the GFC experienced
challenges in reaching all the identified areas for marketing
support and public awareness campaigns.
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Changes to planned targets
The targets as set out above are in line with those
stipulated in the final GFC APP 2018/’19, as approved by
the Executive Authority, thus there are no changes to the
planned targets.

Linking performance with budgets
Programme 2:
Marketing and
Communication

2018/’19

2017/’18

Budget

Actual
expenditure

(Over)/under
expenditure

Budget

Actual
expenditure

(Over)/under
expenditure

R

R

R

R

R

R

Annual Report

102 851

100 793

2 058

95 258

94 511

747

Export mission support

106 813

106 813

-

80 000

74 409

(4 409)

59 950

50 031

9 919

55 000

45 000

5 591

143 760

143 760

-

100 000

95 152

4 848

Location database
updating

10 900

-

10 900

919

-

919

Branding partnership

19 740

2 000

17 740

50 000

28 090

21 910

Media engagements

4 951

-

4 951

4 542

-

4 542

Industry
communications
Advertising placement

5 831

7 115

(1 284)

4 542

7 285

(2 743)

Marketing support film
funded by the GFC

Message on hold

361 887

319 565

42 322

360 000

335 316

24 684

Film awards

185 400

181 910

3 490

60 000

55 000

5 000

Website maintenance

298 115

201 986

96 129

273 500

222 905

50 595

-

-

-

90 000

62 473

27 527

109 000

93 849

15 151

-

-

-

65 400

206 208

(140 808)

160 000

139 079

20 921

1 474 598

1 414 031

49 667

1 333 761

1 152 220

168 031

Marketing collateral
Marketing material
Public awareness
campaigns:
municipalities &
townships
Total

Programme performance 3 – Administration and support services
The aim of the Administration and Support Services programme is to provide strategic support to the entity through
research, financial management, legal services, human capital, and information technology. The programme has five
sub-programmes:
·
·
·
·
·

Office of the CEO (Strategic Planning and Reporting; Research, Monitoring, and Evaluation);
Financial Management Services;
Human Capital Management Services;
Legal and Governance services; and
Information and Communication Technology Services.

Strategic objectives
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To develop and implement performance excellence systems and processes that will ensure that the GFC adheres to
good corporate governance.
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Strategic
objectives

Key Performance Actual
Indicator
achievement
2016/’17

Actual
achievement
2017/’18

Planned target
2018/’19

Annual target
assessment
2018/2019

Reason for
variation

Number of
research reports

The research
strategy was
implemented and
six (6) research
reports compiled.

Research
strategy
implemented.

The research
business plan
(strategy)
developed,
implemented,
and approved.

The research
business plan
(strategy) was
not developed,
implemented,
and approved.

Function
could not be
adequately
fulfilled due
to capacity
constraint.

Effective
monitoring and
evaluation of
system developed,
approved, and
implemented.

Effective monitoring
and evaluation of
system developed,
approved, and
implemented.

Effective
monitoring
and evaluation
of system
developed,
approved, and
implemented.

Effective
monitoring
and evaluation
of system
developed,
approved, and
implemented.

Verification
of data was
implemented.

There are
capacity
constraints
that will be
resolved
in the new
financial year.

Number of fiveProgramme
year strategic plans performance
reviewed.
reports
consolidated,
approved, and
submitted.

Once per MTEF
period.

The fiveyear strategic
plan was
reviewed and
approved by
the Board and
Management.

The five-year
Not
strategic plan
applicable
was reviewed
and approved by
the Board and
Management.

Annual
performance
plan revised and
approved (2016/17
up to 2018/19).

Programme
performance
reports
consolidated,
approved, and
submitted.

July (first draft),
November
(second draft),
February (final
approved
submission).

All APP drafts
were finalised,
approved by
the Board of
Directors, and
submitted to
the Department
on time.

All APP drafts
were finalised,
approved by
the Board of
Directors, and
submitted to
the Department
on time.

Not
applicable

Number of
performance
reports compiled,
approved, and
submitted
(2018/19).

Programme
performance
reports
consolidated,
approved, and
submitted.

Sixteen (16)
reports
compiled,
approved, and
submitted (four
(4) quarterly
reports and
twelve (12) POA
reports).

Sixteen (16)
reports were
finalised and
submitted to
the DSACR.

Sixteen (16)
reports were
finalised and
submitted to
the DSACR.

Not
applicable

Ensure effective
financial systems
and reporting
procedures to
manage and
administer financial
transactions.

100% compliance
with budget
management
framework
and reporting
requirements.

Payments of all
invoices within
fifteen (15) and
thirty (30) days.

100%
compliance
with budget
management
framework
and reporting
requirements

Payments of all
invoices within
fifteen (15) and
thirty (30) days.

Not
applicable

Programme 3
To conduct
comprehensive
industry research
for the purpose
of informing the
GFC and sector
strategies by
effectively becoming
a central repository
of credible industry
information.
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Develop and
maintain effective
business planning
and performance
reporting processes.
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Sound financial
management,
effective financial
administration,
internal control
systems, and
procedures aligned
to prescribed
financial regulations
and guidelines.
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Key Performance Actual
Indicator
achievement
2016/’17

Actual
achievement
2017/’18

Planned target
2018/’19

Annual target
assessment
2018/2019

Reason for
variation

Risk Management,
Fraud Management
and, Audit
Management plans
implemented.

100% Risk
Management, Fraud
Management, and
Audit Management
services provided.

Annual Audit
Plan and
implementation
of policies.

Approved
Annual Audit
Plan and
continuous
improvement
implementation
of policies and
procedures.
Monitoring
progress in
relation to
Internal and
External Audits
conducted.

Approved
Annual Audit
Plan and
continuous
improvement
implementation
of policies and
procedures.
Monitoring
progress in
relation to
Internal and
External Audits
conducted.

Not
applicable

Effective Assets
Management
internal control
systems
implemented.

Interim and annual
assets physical
verification.

Interim
and annual
physical assets
verification.

Interim
and annual
physical asset
verification was
conducted.

Interim and
Not
annual physical
applicable
asset verification
was conducted.

To develop and
maintain an
environment in
which reliable
information
is seamlessly
available to staff
and stakeholders
in a sustainable
and cost-effective
manner, supported
by sound ICT
governance
processes.

ICT Strategy
reviewed and
implemented.

ICT
Strategy ICT Strategy
reviewed
and reviewed and
implemented.
implemented.

ICT Strategy
was
reviewed and
implemented.

ICT Strategy
was
reviewed and
implemented.

Not
applicable

Human Resources
Strategy developed,
approved, and
implemented.

Human Resources
Strategy
developed,
approved, and
implemented.

HR Plan reviewed,

Human
Resource Plan
was reviewed,
approved, and
implemented.

Human
Resource Plan
was reviewed,
approved, and
implemented.

Not
applicable

Provision of 100%
legal services to the
agency.

Effective legal
services to the
agency provided.

Effective
legal 100% compliant
services provided to legal services.
the organisation.

Provided and
complied with
all required legal
services.

Provided and
complied with
all required legal
services.

Not
applicable

Effective
and efficient
Secretariat
services provided
to the Board.

Effective
and
efficient
support
services provided to
the Board.

Effective
and efficient
Secretariat
services
provided to the
Board.

Effective
and efficient
Secretariat
services were
provided to the
Board.

Effective
and efficient
Secretariat
services were
provided to the
Board.

Not
applicable

approved
implemented.

Human
Resources
and
Strategy
developed,
approved, and
implemented.

BIG IDEAS. PERFECT LOCATIONS.

GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

Strategic
objectives
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Performance against strategic objectives
The programme’s Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) contribute to the achievement of all of the GFC’s strategic goals.
Despite the limited budget, the Commission delivered on most of its performance targets.

Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance
During 2018/’19, the GFC was finalising its Enhanced Strategy, which will realign the organisation and address any areas
of underperformance.

Changes to planned targets
The targets set out above are in line with those stipulated in the final GFC APP 2018/’19, as approved by the Executive
Authority.

Linking performance with budgets
Programme 3:
Administration and
Support Services

Management of the GFC

Budget

Actual
expenditure

(Over)/under
expenditure

Budget

Actual
expenditure

(Over)/under
expenditure

R

R

R

R

R

R

22 848 389

(159 636)

22 094 733

23 345 423

(1 250 690)

147 024

132 252

14 772

134 884

121 361

13 523

1 036 240

1 285 408

(249 168)

1 726 104

2 144 431

(418 327)

Development and
maintenance of IT services

766 003

620 084

145 919

633 948

580 673

53 275

Human Resource cost

289 364

282 779

6 585

265 472

241 954

23 518

Printing and stationery

59 235

82 671

(23 436)

61 960

69 813

(7 853)

539 000

602 892

(63 892)

820 677

721 259

99 418

1 414 780

1 091 495

323 285

384 900

299 764

85 136

18 407 107

18 728 966

(321 859)

18 036 788

19 137 697

(1 100 909)

30 000

21 843

8 157

30 000

28 471

1 529

Legal and governance

403 193

446 761

(43 568)

367 150

383 518

(16 368)

Audit Committee fees

60 500

60 500

-

80 000

55 000

25 000

Bid Committee

22 000

-

-

8 000

9 500

(1 500)

198 500

224 000

(25 500)

112 000

166 000

(54 000)

-

-

-

50 000

-

50 000

Remuneration fees

20 000

11 000

9 000

40 000

36 500

3 500

Training and development Board

44 000

73 788

(29 788)

20 000

43 190

(23 910)

-

11 000

(11 000)

-

-

-

58 193

66 473

(8 280)

57 150

72 608

(15 458)

395 726

210 713

185 013

103 575

247 377

(143 802)

-

-

-

52 450

-

52 450

315 000

134 213

180 787

51 125

247 377

(196 252)

80 726

76 500

4 226

-

-

-

23 487 672

23 505 863

(18 191)

22 565 458

23 973 318

(1 407 860)

Building, office maintenance,
and operations

Professional services
Auxiliary services
Employee cost
Finance cost

Directors’ remuneration
Legal fees

Social & Ethics Committee
fees
GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION
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2017/’18

22 688 753

Administration services

32

2018/’19

Refreshments and meetings
Advocacy and strategy
Research
Strategic planning
Special projects
Total
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Revenue collection
Sources of
revenue

Government grant

2018/’19

2017/’18

Estimate

Actual
amount
collected

(Over)/under
collection

Estimate

Actual
amount
collected

(Over)/under
collection

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

34 434

34 434

-

28 766

28 766

-

Conditional grant

-

-

-

250

250

-

Interest received

200

325

(125)

200

259

(59)

34 634

34 759

(125)

29 216

29 275

(59)

Total

It should be noted that during the current financial year under review, the GFC made a loss amounting to R54,828.

Capital investment
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The Gauteng Film Commission incurred capital expenditure in relation to the upgrade of the post-production and
research facility during the current year under review.
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Introduction
Corporate governance embodies processes and systems
by which public entities are directed, controlled, and held
accountable to. In addition to legislative requirements
based on a public entity’s enabling legislation and the
Companies Act, corporate governance with regards
to public entities is applied through the precepts of
the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) and run
in tandem with the principles contained in the King
Code of Governance Principles, the King Report on
Governance (King IV), and the Protocol on Corporate
Governance in the public sector, as adopted by Cabinet
in 2002.
The GFC is committed to sound governance practices,
conducting its affairs with integrity, and holds itself
accountable to its stakeholders and clients. The Board
continually reviews its corporate governance structures
and practices to align it with national best practice.
The CEO and the Board are responsible for corporate
governance.

Executive Authority
The MEC of the Department of Sport, Arts, Culture,
and Recreation (DSACR) is the Executive Authority of
the GFC. During the period under review, no issues
were raised by the MEC with regards to the GFC’s
reporting and operations.
The Board reports back to the DSACR through quarterly
and annual reports, as well as regular meetings with the
MEC. All required quarterly and financial reports were
submitted within the set timeframes.

The Board
Introduction
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The Board of Directors serves as the GFC’s Accounting
Authority, ensuring that it operates in the best interests
of the DSACR and in line with all relevant legislation and
corporate governance principles.
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The CEO is in charge of the day-to-day management of
the GFC’s operations and assists the Board in providing
strategic and policy direction to the entity. The Directors
are entitled to seek independent professional advice
concerning the affairs of the GFC, and have access to
any information that they may require in discharging
their duties.
The responsibilities of the Board include:
·
·
·
·

Retaining full and effective control over the GFC;
Approving the corporate strategy, business plans
and budgets, and closely monitoring management’s
implementation thereof;
Ensuring that the GFC complies with all relevant
laws, regulations, and codes of best practice; and
Ensuring that effective risk management processes
are in place.

The term of two Board members came to an end
during the current financial year, and their contracts
were renewed. The Chairperson of the Audit and
Risk’s contract, Mr Petersan Mothudi was subsequently
extended for a period of a year.

Board Charter
The objectives of the GFC Board Charter are to:
·
·
·
·
·

Enable the Board of Directors to provide strategic
guidance to the GFC and effectively
oversee management;
Clarify the respective roles and responsibilities of
Directors and Management to
facilitate accountability;
Ensure a balance of authority so that no single
individual has unfettered powers;
Ensure compliance with South Africa’s laws and
regulations; and
Ensure that management adheres to the mandate
given to them by government, as well as adhering
to the approved budget.

During the period under review, the GFC Board
continued to adhere to the Board Charter.

Composition of the Board
B. Mhaga

Chairperson
Credentials: Bachelor of Philosophy, Bachelor of Technology
Diploma in Town and Regional Planning
Area of expertise: Business Management
Other Board: None
No. of other meetings attended: 3 out of 5
No. of Board meetings attended: 5 out of 5

A. Mbeki

Chief Executive Officer
Credentials: National Diploma in Education, B.Ed., Master’s in Education
Master’s in Business Admin, Certificates in ICT, Leadership and African Studies
Area of expertise: Film and Television
Other Board: None
No. of other meetings attended: None
No. of Board meetings attended: 1 out of 5

S. Sekgobela
Acting Chief Executive Officer
Credentials: Senior Secondary Teachers Diploma, Executive Leadership
Corporate Governance, BCom, BCom (Hons), MSc (Economics)
Area of expertise: Corporate Governance, Finance , Human Resources
Other Board: Emalahleni Housing Company, Department of Trade Industry. Dti)
National Consumer Council (NCC)
No. of other meetings attended: 5 out of 5
No. of Board meetings attended: 5 out of 5

E. Maluleke
Chief Financial Officer
Credentials: BCom, SAICA Articles, SAIPA and AGASA
Area of expertise: Finance, Auditing , Corporate Governance
Other Board: None
No. of Board meetings attended: 5 out of 5

J. Ngoma
Credentials: BA in Mass , Communication, Minor African Studies, Diploma in Town and
Regional Planning
Area of expertise: Digital Marketing, Script-writing/Creative writing, Content
Development, Digital media Campaign development
Other Board: None
No. of Board meetings attended: 2 out of 5
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D. Bensusan

Board Member
Credentials: BA in Film Production, BA (Hons), Master’s in Education, LLB
Area of expertise: Philosophy of Education
Other Board: None
No. of other meetings attended: 4 out of 5
No. of Board meetings attended: 4 out of 5

K. Khoza

Board Member
Credentials: Master’s in Public Admin, Post-graduate diploma in Administrative Studies
Area of expertise: Public Administration
Other Board: None
No. of other meetings attended: No. of Board meetings attended: 2 out of 5

C. Hamilton

Board Member
Credentials: Bachelor of Applied Arts, Photographic Arts, Post-graduate Diploma in Arts
Area of expertise: Directing, Script-writing, Business in Film, Production
Other Board: None
No. of other meetings attended: No. of Board meetings attended: 5 out of 5

E. Mbalo

Deputy Chairperson
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Credentials: Dip in Broadcast Engineering
Area of expertise: Film, Broadcasting, Media, and Governance
Other Board: GAIA, Infrastructure capital
No. of other meetings attended: 4 out of 5
No. of Board meetings attended: 5 out of 5
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Board Committees
To assist in discharging its responsibilities, the Board has established the following committees: Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Specification and Evaluation Committee, the Bid Adjudication Committee,
and the Risk Management Committee (as reflected on the Board Charter).
Committee

No. of meetings
held

No. of members

Name of members

Audit Committee

4

6

Mr Johan Van Der Walt CA (SA) -Chairperson
Ms Esther Makau
Ms Ephenia Motlhamme
Ms Lebogang Ndadana
Mr Petersan Mothudi CA (SA) – Chairperson
Mr Eddie Mbalo

Remuneration Committee

1

3

Mr Lufuno Nematswerani - Chairperson
Ms Joy Mgoma
Ms Busi Mhaga

-

5

Mr Keith Khoza - Chairperson
Mr Eddie Mbalo
Ms Anthea Mokoena
Mr Elliot Maluleke - PA (SA) & AGA (SA)

Social and Ethics
Committee

1

3

Mr David Bensusan - Chairperson
Mr Clarence Hamilton

Nominations Committee

1

4

Ms Busi Mhaga
Mr Eddie Mbalo
Ms Simangele Sekgobela
Ms Anthea Mokoena

Specification and
Evaluation Committee

-

6

Ms A Mokoena
Ms L Mohoaladi
Mr I Mokgaphane
Mr M Mogoba
Mr D Mthembu
Ms S Mbatha

Risk Management
Committee

1

9

Mr. A Mbeki
Mr E Maluleke
Ms A Mokoena
Ms L Mohoaladi
Ms S Mbatha
Mr I Mokgaphane
Mr M Mogoba
Mr D Mthembu

Management Committee

12

8

Mr A Mbeki
Mr E Maluleke
Mrs A Mokoena
Ms L Mohoaladi
Ms S Mbatha
Mr I Mokgaphane
Mr M Mogoba
Ms S Sekgobela
Mr D Mthembu
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Bid Adjudication
Committee
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Committee
Board Members

No. of meetings
held

No. of members

5

9

Ms Busi Mhaga - Chairperson
Mr Andile Mbeki - Executive
Mr Eddie Mbalo - Deputy Chairperson
Ms Simangele Sekgobela - Executive
Mr Keith Khoza - Non-Executive
Mr Elliot Maluleke PA (SA) & AGA (SA) - Executive
Mr Clarence Hamilton - Non-Executive
Ms Joy Ngoma - Non-Executive
Mr David Bensusan - Non-Executive

Audit & Risk Committee

Remuneration Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee has discharged all
of its responsibilities set out in terms of applicable
requirements of the King IV, as well as in its adopted
Terms of Reference. The role should provide
independent oversight of amongst others:

The Remuneration Committee is accountable for
monitoring and overseeing the remuneration of
all the GFC’s employees, giving due regard to the
competitiveness within the relevant market, as well
as the financial well-being of the organisation. The
Committee recommends the policies and procedures
of the organisation to the Board for its approval.

In the conduct of its duties, the Audit and Risk
Committee has reviewed the following:
·

·
·

·

·

The effectiveness of the GFC assurance functions
and services, which particularly focus on combined
assurance arrangements, including external
assurance service providers, internal, and finance
functions.
The integrity of Annual Financial Statements and,
to the extend delegated by the Board of Directors,
other external reports issued by the GFC.
A statutory Audit and Risk Committee has the
power to make decisions regarding its statutory
duties and is accountable for its performance in this
regard.
If the governing body delegates risk governance to
the Audit and Risk Committee, the Audit and Risk
Committee should satisfy itself that it dedicates
time to its responsibility.
The Audit and Risk Committee should oversee the
management of financial and other risk that affect
the integrity of external reports issued by the GFC.
The Audit and Risk Committee should meet
annually with internal and external auditors
respectively, without management being present, to
facilitate and exchange views and concerns that may
be inappropriate for discussion in an open forum.
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Name of members
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Bid adjudication Committee
The Bid Committee is involved in all open tenders of the
GFC, and is responsible for approving recommendations
from the Specification and Evaluation Committee for
tenders. It reports directly to the Board of Directors.

Specification and Evaluation Committee
The Specification and Evaluation Committee is
accountable for monitoring and overseeing the
implementation of the procurement policy, procedures,
the code of conduct and monitoring adherence thereto,
and making recommendations to the Bid Committee.

Risk Management Committee
The Risk Management Committee, which comprises of
GFC senior managers, is responsible for managing the
overall risk of the organisation, both financial and nonfinancial.

Management Committee
The Management Committee (Manco) comprises of GFC executive managers and deals with issues pertaining to the
day-to-day management of the operation, and is accountable for formulating the GFC’s strategy and implementing
it once it is approved by the Board.

Remuneration of Board members
All non-executive directors are remunerated for their services on the Board. The MEC determines the fees payable
to Board members, provided that such members do not work for the state or state-owned agencies, as required
by National Treasury. The Chairperson of the Board receives no additional remuneration for services rendered on
the Board.
Name

Remuneration

Total

Mr. C Hammilton

38 500

38 500

Ms. B Mhaga

61 500

61 500

Mr. E Mbalo

53 500

53 500

Mr. P Mothudi

16 500

16 500

Mr. D Bensusan

38 500

38 500

Ms. J Ngoma

22 000

22 000

Ms. E Motlhamme

22 000

22 000

Ms. L Ndadana

16 500

16 500

Total

269 000

269 000

In line with the Companies Act, Act No. 71 of 2008,
the Board is responsible for the management of risks
pertaining to the business of the GFC. The Board has
delegated this authority to the CEO.
While the line manager of each division within the
GFC has the primary responsibility of identifying and
managing risks inherent to the operations of his/her
division, the Audit Committee develops and reviews
risks management strategies, policies, and procedures
to ensure that they are appropriate.

Manco reports administratively to the CEO and
submits Annual Reports to the Audit Committee,
providing assurance on the management of significant
risks or exposure. The Internal Audit function, which
is outsourced, independently audits the adequacy and
effectiveness of the GFC’s risk, control, and governance
processes.
The GFC manages its risk through its Risk Register.
Manco and the Board take the necessary actions
to mitigate each risk listed in the Risk Register. The
identified risks can be grouped as strategic, liquidity,
operational, reputation, reporting, and compliance.
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Risk management
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The Risk Register for 2018/’19 is set out below.
Strategic Risk Register
Results statement

Associated risk

Risk level

Mitigating actions

Insufficient funding

Very high

Request additional funding
from key stakeholders.

Hacking of the GFC website

Very high

The GFC website legal
disclaimer, privacy policy,
and terms and conditions to
use content.

There is no capacity to fulfil
these responsibilities.

Very high

Ad hoc functions currently
performed by Stakeholder
Manager.

Industry support and development:
Establishing strategic
partnerships with key
industry stakeholders.

Marketing:

To position Gauteng as an
audio-visual content hub
and enhance the GFC brand
locally and internationally.
Research:
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To conduct relevant research
to be a hub of industryrelated information and
innovation.
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Risk management policy and strategy

Liquidity risk

The GFC’s risk approach is to identify as many of
its business risks as possible and then to formulate
appropriate policies and controls in order to manage
these risks. The Risk Management Policy and Risk
Register are managed by the Board and management.

Liquidity risk relates to funds available to cover future
commitments and is managed through careful selection
of financial instruments and cash flow forecasting.

These documents provide the governance framework
for managing the GFC’s risks and set out the controls,
procedures, and processes necessary to manage,
reduce and/or eliminate the identified risks. Since
risk management is an ongoing process, the Risk
Management Policy and Risk Charter are reviewed and
updated annually.

Compliance risk relates to negative impact originating
from the GFC’s non-compliance with all applicable
legislation and regulations. Compliance risk is managed by
creating awareness of the regulatory requirements and
monitoring compliance with legislative requirements.

Compliance risk

Risk assessments

The Risk Management Committee assists the Board of
Directors in complying with all applicable statutory and
regulatory requirements.

Strategic risk

Operational risk

Strategic risk relates to failure of the GFC to deliver on
its mandate.

Operational risk relates to a direct or indirect loss
resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes,
people, and systems.
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The operational risk category includes the following risk
areas:
·
·
·
·
·
·
·

Fraud
Financial management
Legal risk
HR risk
IT risk
Business continuity
Taxation

The Audit Committee and Board have approved finance
policies which include the Fraud and Corruption Policy
and avoidance of wasteful and fruitless expenditure. No
incidents of fraud or irregular activities were reported
during the financial year under review.
Reputational risk
Reputational risk relates to the damage of the GFC’s
image, which may impair its ability to retain and generate
more business.
The GFC’s reputational risk is managed through its
ongoing evaluation and management of the significant
risk types highlighted above. The Senior Manager
of Marketing and Communication is in charge of the
corporate communication portfolio.

Role of the Audit & Risk Committee in managing
risk
The Audit Committee annually reviews the Risk
Management Policy before presenting it to the Board
for approval. It also monitors compliance with the
approved policy during the course of the year.

Progress in risk management
During the year, the GFC kept its risk exposure at a
medium to low level and successfully managed the risks
contained in its Risk Register, as outlined in the table on
page 42.

Internal control
The Audit Committee assists the Board in discharging
its duty to ensure that the GFC maintains adequate
accounting records, internal controls, and systems
designed to provide reasonable assurance on the
integrity and reliability of financial information and to
safeguard its assets.
The effectiveness of these internal control systems is
monitored through management reviews, formalised
reporting, and internal audits.
During the period under review, the following initiatives
were undertaken to ensure improved internal control:
·
·
·

Annual review of policies and procedures;
Implementation of action plan for both internal and
external audit findings; and
Compliance to policies and procedures.

Risk Management Committee

Internal audit and Audit & Risk Committee

The Risk Management Committee, which consists of
Management, advises the Board and management on
the mitigation of identified operational and financial
risks facing the GFC. In 2018/’19, the committee met on
two occasions.

Key activities and objectives of the internal audit

The matters discussed included:
·
·
·
·
·
·

Approved Annual Performance Plan for the 2018/’19
financial year under review;
Updating and finalising the Risk Register;
Internal Audit Reports;
Final Management and Audit Report;
Action plan for both internal and external audits;
and
Policies and Procedures Progress Report.

The internal audit function, under the direction of the
Audit Committee, is outsourced to an independent
service provider and operates in terms of the Internal
Audit Charter, which was reviewed and approved by
the Audit Committee and endorsed by the Board
during the financial year.
It reports functionally to the Audit Committee and
administratively to the CEO, and its staff has full and
unrestricted access to the Chairperson of the Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee conducts its own
review of the effectiveness of the internal audit function.
All operations, business activities, and support functions
are subject to internal review. The Internal Audit Plan is
based on key risk areas identified, and audits are planned
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This risk category is managed through a system of
internal controls, which is based on approved policies and
procedures for initiation, verification, reconciliation of
transactions, and adequate segregation of incompatible
duties.
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and executed to provide management with independent
assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
internal control systems.

Internal audits during the year
·
·
·
·

Performance audit;
Financial Management;
Human Resources; and
ICT Vulnerability Audit.

·
·

·

Key activities and objectives of the Audit & Risk
Committee

·

The Audit Charter sets out the role and responsibilities
of the Audit Committee, including:

·

·
·
·

Reviewing the quality of the Annual Financial
Statements and their compliance with accounting
policies;
Liaising with the external auditors on issues,
including the effectiveness of the Annual Audit
co-ordination between the external and internal
auditors and recommending the audit fee;
Reviewing the reports of the internal and external
auditors to ensure that prompt action is taken to
rectify deficiencies in controls and procedures;

Reviewing the Risk Management Policy for Board
approval and monitoring compliance therewith;
Reviewing financial policies, internal control
structures, financial controls, and accounting
systems;
Reviewing the quarterly financial and progress
reports before Board submission;

Reviewing reports on abnormal events affecting
the GFC, including reports on defaults in respect of
grants, fraud, and theft;
Compiling the minutes of its meetings and circulating
these to all Board members;
Monitoring compliance with all statutory
requirements; and
Requesting surprise audits as and when deemed fit.

·
·

The committee has the authority to approve audit plans,
audit fees, to review the adequacy of insurance cover,
and make recommendations thereon before submission
to the Board for approval.

Attendance of Audit Committee meetings
Name

Qualifications

Internal/
external

If
internal,

Date

Date

position

appointed

resigned

No.
of

Mr J van der Walt

(CA) SA

Chairperson

-

24 May 2007

31 October 2018

2 out of 4

Mr K Khoza

Master of Public
Administration,

Deputy
Chairperson

-

1 November 2012

-

0 out of 4

Post-graduate
Diploma in
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Administrative
Studies
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Ms E Makau

BCom Accounting
and MBA

External

-

24 May 2007

31 October 2018

0 out of 4

Mr P Mothudi

(CA) SA

Chairperson

-

24 November 2009

-

4 out of 4

External

-

1 November 2018

-

2 out of 2

Ms E
Mothlamme

B Juris & LLB

Mr E Mbalo

Dip in Broadcast
Engineering

Deputy
Chairperson

-

28 October 2018

-

1 out of 2

Ms L Mdadana

(CA) SA

External

-

01 November 2018

-

2 out of 2
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Compliance with laws and regulations
The Board and management are confident that all
policies and procedures comply with the applicable
laws and regulations that govern the GFC’s operations.
In this regard, the GFC submitted its business plan, as
required in terms of Section 52 of the PFMA, as well
as quarterly reports regarding finance, performance,
and conformance with applicable laws, regulations, and
other government prescripts to the DSACR.

Fraud and corruption
Progress on Fraud Prevention Plan implementation
All GFC governing structures are focused on fraud
prevention to protect its revenue, expenditure, assets,
and reputation from any attempts by any person to gain
financial or other benefits in an unlawful, dishonest, or
unethical manner. The CEO and Board Chairperson are
responsible for the implementation and maintenance of
the Fraud Prevention Plan, while the Audit Committee
plays an oversight role.

Should a conflict occur, the conflicting party is recused
from any meetings or decisions relating thereto.
Management is encouraged to disclose any gifts they
may have received in the GFC’s gift registry, which is
kept in the CEO’s office.

Code of Conduct
The GFC Code of Conduct is based on the fundamental
principles of fairness, transparency, integrity, reliability,
responsibility, and honesty. It commits both management
and staff to high standards of conduct in their dealings
with clients and stakeholders.
No incidents of unethical conduct that required further
investigation or action were reported during the year
under review.

Health, safety and environmental issues
The GFC closely monitors health, safety, and
environmental issues that may impact its operations.
No incidents were reported in the year under review.

Mechanisms in place to report fraud and corruption

Company secretary

The GFC continues to embrace any contribution
employees and members of the community make in the
reporting of fraud and corruption. Its Fraud Prevention
Plan puts the necessary whistle-blowing mechanisms in
place to report any cases of fraud or corruption.

The company secretary is responsible for ensuring
compliance with the GFC’s Memorandum and Articles
of Association and effecting any changes to meet the
needs of the GFC. She may also assume the responsibility
of public officer of the GFC under the Income Tax Act,
No. 28 of 1997, and other taxation legislation. She
has a duty to advise the Board and ensure that there
is compliance of all governance requirements for the
organisation.

Minimising conflict of interest
The GFC has effective measures in place to minimise
conflict of interest. All Board members complete a
General Declaration of Interest prior to each meeting.
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No instances of fraud or irregular activities have been
reported during the year under review.

The Company Secretary must, in accordance with the
Companies Act, certify that the GFC has lodged all
returns required of a public company and that these
returns are true, correct, and up-to-date. Other
responsibilities include ensuring that all letterheads,
notices, official stationery, and publications display the
correct entity name, registration number, registered
office, and names of the directors and company
secretary. Copies of the GFC’s Annual Financial
Statements, as well as quarterly performance reports,
were sent to the Executive Authority.

All instances of fraud or corruption are reported to
the Audit Committee quarterly. Fraud-related risks are
reviewed regularly, and the necessary internal controls
and audit measures are in place to identify and manage
these risks. Any direct or indirect losses incurred due to
fraud are monitored through effective information and
communication processes, and the GFC reacts swiftly if
a crime is uncovered.
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Social responsibility
No social responsibility projects were undertaken
during the year under review.

Internal Audit and Risk Committee
1. Audit Committee responsibility
The Audit and Risk Committee reports that it has
discharged all of its responsibilities set out in terms of
applicable requirements of the Companies Act, as well
as in its adopted Terms of Reference.

In the opinion of the Audit and Risk Committee, the
internal controls and procedures of the Gauteng Film
Commission are considered to be appropriate in all
material respects in relation to:
·
·

Achieving the business objectives of the Gauteng
Film Commission;
Ensuring that the Gauteng Film Commission assets
are adequately safeguarded; and
Ensuring that transactions undertaken are recorded
in the Gauteng Film Commission’s records.

In the conduct of its duties, the Audit and Risk
Committee has reviewed the following:

·

·
·
·

3. Evaluation of financial statements

·
·
·
·

·

The effectiveness of the internal control systems;
The effectiveness of the internal audit;
The risk area of the operations to be covered in the
scope of internal and external audits;
The adequacy, reliability, and accuracy of financial
information provided to management and other
users of such information;
Any accounting and auditing concerns identified as a
result of internal and external audits;
Compliance with legal and regulatory provisions;
The activities of the Internal Audit function,
including its Annual Audit Plan, co-ordination
with the external auditors, and the responses of
management to specific recommendations; and
Internal audit assessment and compliance.

2. Internal Controls
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The management of the Gauteng Film Commission
continues to strive towards sustainable improvement in
its internal control.
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Nothing has come to the attention of the Audit and
Risk Committee to indicate that a material breakdown
in the functioning of the internal controls, procedures,
or systems has occurred during the year under review.
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The Committee has evaluated the Annual Financial
Statement of the Gauteng Film Commission for the year
ended 31 March 2019 and, based on the information
provided to the Audit and Risk Committee, considers
that they comply, in all material respects, with the
requirements of the applicable Companies Act.

___________________________

Busi Mhaga
Chairperson
31 July, 2019

Directors
The following persons served as directors of the GFC during the financial year:
Resignation
Date

Directors Name

Status

Appointment
Date

Ms Busi Mhaga-Chairperson

Non-Executive

02 May 2018

-

Ms Joy Ngoma

Non-Executive

01 August 2017

-

Mr Eddie Mbalo-Deputy Chairperson

Non-Executive

02 May 2018

-

Mr David Bensusan

Non-Executive

01 August 2017

-

Mr Clarence Hamilton

Non-Executive

02 May 2018

-

Mr Keith Khoza

Non-Executive

29 September 2018

-

Ms Simangele Sekgobela-Acting CEO

Executive

27 February 2017

-

Mr Andile Mbeki-CEO

Executive

15 September 2014

Mr Elliot Maluleke-PA(SA) & AGA (SA)

Executive

01 March 2009

31 March 2019
-
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Non-executive directors do not have a service contract with the organisation, only the executive directors.

BIG IDEAS. PERFECT LOCATIONS.

047

48

BIG IDEAS. PERFECT LOCATIONS.

GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

PART D

GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

HUMAN
RESOURCES

BIG IDEAS. PERFECT LOCATIONS.

049

Introduction
Overview of HR matters
The objective of the HR Unit is to develop and maintain
effective HR management processes, which in turn
will ensure that the GFC is adequately staffed, and
that those staff members are trained and capacitated
in an environment conducive to harmonious working
relations. This will contribute to ensuring that the GFC is
positioned and resourced to deliver on its mandate and
strategic objectives.
Employees and directors are expected to conduct
themselves in an ethical manner and within the laws of
this or any other country in which they, or the GFC, may
operate.

Priorities for the year
During the period under review, the HR Unit focused on
the following activities, as per the Annual HR Plan:
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·

Leave Management System and procedures;
Implementing the Employment Equity (EE) Plan;
Implementing the Performance Management System;
Implementing the Employee Wellness Plan;
Complying with labour legislation;
Dispute management;
Conducting a needs analysis of HR policies to be
developed or reviewed;
Conducting a Skills Need Analysis and developing a
Workplace Skills Development Plan.

Workforce planning framework
The Workplace Skills Development Plan was reviewed
and updated during the reporting period. In line with
this plan, the HR Unit developed training schedules and
individual development plans for each staff member.

Employee performance management framework
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After conducting a needs assessment, the HR Unit
implemented the Performance Management System.
Performance is monitored through a balanced scorecard
and all employees signed their performance agreements

50

BIG IDEAS. PERFECT LOCATIONS.

for the year. These agreements are aligned with
the business and/or department outputs, as well as
employees’ individual job outputs as outlined in their job
profile. Quarterly performance reviews were conducted
and submitted to the CEO. Management ensures that
performance outputs focus on tangible deliverables for
each employee to guarantee that the small team remains
dynamic and streamlined to deliver on the business
objectives.

Employee wellness programme
The GFC has a holistic Employee Wellness Plan in place.
This is aimed at achieving a balance between work and
personal life. An employee wellness event was held with
a great turnout.

Achievements and challenges
The HR Unit faced the following challenges:
·
·
·
·

Adherence to Performance Management System;
Retention and Succession Strategy to be clarified;
Employee wellbeing; and
High vacancy rate.

Most of these challenges were, however, addressed
during the reporting period.
The unit reviewed and approved the HR plan for
2018/’19. It also compiled a policy registry and reviewed
various HR-related policies.
The automated Leave Management System was
implemented.
The GFC is committed to transformation in the
workplace and has embarked on a process of promoting
equal opportunity and fair treatment in employment in
the workplace. The HR Unit has, therefore, implemented
its EE Plan and partially achieved the EE targets set for
the year. Efforts are being made to employ people with
disabilities. Due to the pending Enhanced Strategy for
the GFC, most vacant positions could not be filled as per
the Board and the MEC.
The GFC complied with all labour relations legislation.

Plans for the future
In order to fulfil its mandate of ensuring a fully capacitated GFC, the HR Unit will ensure that a change management
session is conducted once the Enhanced Strategy is completed. It will also review all existing HR policies, as well as
the annual HR Plan.
Workforce planning will remain a key function, and the HR Unit will ensure that individual development plans are in
place for each employee, which is in line with the strategic goals of the GFC.

HR oversight statistics
Personnel cost by programme
Programme

Total
expenditure

Personnel
expenditure

Personnel
expenditure
as a % of total
expenditure

(R’000)

(R’000)

(R’000)
CEO’s office

No. of
employees

Average
personnel
cost per
employee
(R’000)

210

4 448

24%

4

1 112

21 684

2 448

13%

2

1 224

Human Resources

283

2 011

11%

4

503

Information
Technology

617

1 764

9%

2

882

ISD

9 470

4 051

21%

4

1 013

Marketing

1 414

2 405

13%

2

1 203

Legal

446

1 601

9%

2

801

Total

34 124

18 728

100%

20

Finance

6737

Personnel cost by salary band
Level

Personnel
expenditure

% of personnel
expenditure to total
personnel cost

(R’000)

(R’000)

No. of employees

Average personnel
cost per employee

(R’000)

4 392

23%

3

1 464

Senior management

4 049

22%

3

1 350

Professional - qualified

6 409

34%

5

1 282

Skilled

3 389

18%

7

484

489

3%

2

245

-

-

-

-

18 728

1

20

4 824

Semi-skilled
Unskilled
Total
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Top management
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Performance rewards
No incentives were paid to GFC employees during the period under review.

Training costs
Programme

Personnel
expenditure

Training
expenditure

(R’000)

(R’000)

Study assistance and training

18,629

Training
expenditure
as a % of
personnel cost

208

No. of
employees
trained

1.12%

Average
training cost
per employee

8

29 826

Employment and vacancies
Programme

2017/’18

2018/’19

2018/’19

2018/’19

No. of
employees

Approved
posts

No. of
employees

Vacancies

CEO’s office

4

4

4

1

4.3%

Finance

2

3

2

1

4.3%

Human Resources

4

4

4

-

-

Information Technology

2

2

2

-

-

ISD

4

5

4

1

4.3%

Marketing

2

3

2

1

4.3%

Legal

2

2

2

-

-

Total

22

23

22

4

17.2%

Salary band

2017/’18

2018/’19

2018/’19

2018/’19

No. of
employees

Approved
posts

No. of
employees

Vacancies

% of approved
vacancies

Top management

3

2

2

-

-

Senior management

3

3

3

-

-

Professional - qualified

7

8

6

2

8.6%

Skilled

6

8

7

2

8.6%

Semi-skilled

2

2

2

-

-

Unskilled

-

-

-

-

-

22

23

20

4

17.2%

Total
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*Top Management inclusive of Acting Chief Executive Officer.

52

% of approved
vacancies
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Employment changes
Salary band

Employment at
beginning of period

Appointments

Terminations

Employment at
end of the period

Top management

3

-

1

2

Senior management

3

-

-

3

Professional - qualified

7

-

1

6

Skilled

6

-

-

7

Semi-skilled

2

-

-

2

Unskilled

-

-

-

-

22

-

2

20

Total

*Top Management inclusive of Acting Chief Executive Officer.

Reasons for staff leaving
Reason

Number

% of total no. of staff leaving

Death

-

-

Resignation

2

8.6%

Dismissal

-

-

Retirement

-

-

Ill health

-

-

Expiry of contract

-

-

Other

-

-

Total

2

8.6%

Labour relations: misconduct and disciplinary action

GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

None.

BIG IDEAS. PERFECT LOCATIONS.

053

54

BIG IDEAS. PERFECT LOCATIONS.

GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

PART E

GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

FINANCIAL
INFORMATION

BIG IDEAS. PERFECT LOCATIONS.

055

GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION (NPC) (REGISTRATION NUMBER 2001/013031/08)

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY
For the year that ended 31 March 2019

The Companies Act requires the directors to ensure
that Gauteng Film Commission keeps full and proper
records of its financial affairs. The Annual Financial
Statements fairly present the state of the affairs of
Gauteng Film Commission, its financial results, and
its financial position for the year ended. The Annual
Financial Statements are the responsibility of the
directors.
The Annual Financial Statements of Gauteng Film
Commission have been prepared in terms of
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS),
including any interpretations of such statements. The
Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in the
manner required by the South African Companies Act.
These Annual Financial Statement are based on
the appropriate accounting policies, supported by
reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates; and
are prepared on the going concern basis and prepared
on accrual basis. The directors have every reason to
believe that the Gauteng Film Commission will be a
going concern in the period ahead.
To discharge the above responsibilities, the Board of
Directors set standards to ensure that sound systems
of internal control are implemented by management.
The controls are designed to provide cost-effective
assurance that assets are safeguarded, and that liabilities
and working capital are efficiently managed. Policies,
procedures, structures and approval frameworks
provide direction, accountability and division of
responsibilities.

GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION
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The controls throughout Gauteng Film Commission focus
on those critical risk areas identified by operational risk
management and confirmed by executive management.
Management, Audit and Risk Committee and Internal
Audit closely monitor the controls and ensure action is
taken to correct deficiencies as they are identified.
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The Directors are of the opinion, based on the
information and explanations given by Management,
Audit and Risk Committee, that the material internal
accounting controls are adequate to, ensure that the
financial records may be relied upon for preparing the
Annual Financial Statement, and that accountability for
assets and liabilities is maintained.
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Nothing has come to the attention of the Directors to
indicate that any material breakdown in the functioning
of these controls, procedures and systems has occurred
during the period under review.
In my opinion, the performance information fairly
reflects the actual achievements against the planned
objectives indicators and targets, as per Strategic and
APP of the Gauteng Film Commission for the financial
year ended 31 March 2019.The performance information
for the year ended 31 March 2019 was examined by the
external auditors and their report is on page 7 to 11.
The Annual Financial Statement of Gauteng Film
Commission for the year ended 31 March 2019, set out
on pages 78 to 100 to be reviewed by the Audit and
Risk Committee on the 21 May 2019 and subsequently
approved by the Board of Directors.

___________________
Simangele Sekgobela
(Acting) CEO

___________________

Busi Mhaga
Chairperson of the Board

Date: 31 July 2019

GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION (NPC) (REGISTRATION NUMBER 2001/013031/08)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
For the year that ended 31 March 2019

Director’s report
The Directors are pleased to submit their report, together with the Gauteng Annual Financial Statements for
the year ended 31 March 2019. The Annual Financial Statement have been prepared based on accounting policies
applicable to a going concern. This basis presumes Gauteng Film Commission will continue as a going concern entity
in the foreseeable future and there is nothing brought to the attention of Board of Directors that will impact on the
going concern of the entity.

Service rendered by the entity
The Gauteng Film Commission is a Non-Profit Company (NPC) company incorporated in terms of the Companies
Act. The main business of the Gauteng Film Commission is development and promotion of audio visual industries
in Gauteng Province. Gauteng Film Commission core business is to deliver professional film commission services,
as well as to support facilitate and enhance the contribution of the film industry to the economic growth of the
Gauteng Province. The business and activities of the Gauteng Film Commission for the year ended were reviewed
by the Chief Executive Officer.

Going Concern
The Directors of GFC presents financial statements on the “Going Concern basis”, this implies that’s assets and
liabilities are recorded on the assumption that the company will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future. Accordingly assets and liabilities are recorded on the basis that the entity will be able to realise its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

Legal Standing
The GFC Board of Directors resolved that the organization should remain as a Non Profit Company (NPC).

Business result summary:

Total Revenue
Net Loss for the year
Total Assets
Accumulated Loss

Mar 2019

Mar 2018
Restated

R

R

34,434,000

29,016,000

(54,828)

(882,109)

1,449,289

1,338,106

(817,516)

(762,688)

Gauteng Film Commission has been allocated an additional R4 million during the Premier Budget Council (PBC)
budget adjustment process, the additional budget has been allocated specifically for Production for Broadcast and
Audience Development respectively. In terms of the conditions of the additional allocation R1 million must be
utilized for film festival and R3 million should for Production for Broadcast.
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Budget Adjustments.
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GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION (NPC) (REGISTRATION NUMBER 2001/013031/08)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
For the year that ended 31 March 2019

Directors
The following persons served as Directors of GFC during the financial year ending 31 March 2019:
Directors Name

Status

Appointment
Date

Ms Busi Mhaga-Chairperson

Non-Executive

02 May 2018

Resignation
Date
-

Ms Joy Ngoma

Non-Executive

01 August 2017

-

Mr Eddie Mbalo-Deputy Chairperson

Non-Executive

02 May 2018

-

Mr David Bensusan

Non-Executive

01 August 2017

-

Mr Clarence Hamilton

Non-Executive

02 May 2018

-

Mr Keith Khoza

Non-Executive

29 September 2018

-

Ms Simangele Sekgobela-Acting CEO

Executive

27 February 2017

Mr Andile Mbeki-CEO

Executive

15 September 2014

Mr Elliot Maluleke-PA(SA) & AGA (SA)

Executive

01 March 2009

31 March 2019
-

Non- executive directors do not have service contracts with the Gauteng Film Commission. The Chief Executive
Officer has a five-period fixed term employment performance contract. Mr Andile Mbeki was appointed as the
Chief Executive Officer on the 15 September 2014. It should be noted that he was put on special leave on the 23
February 2017 pending an investigation. Ms Simangele Sekgobela, a board member was appointed as Acting Chief
Executive Officer on the 27th February 2017.
An agreement was reached with Mr Mbeki on the 29 March 2019 following various discussions a resolution was
reached by Gauteng Film Commission and the Department of Sports, Arts, Culture and Recreation which resulted
in mutual agreement to process the resignation effective from 31 March 2019.This was reflected on the letter dated
23 January 2019.GFC has terminated his service following a resignation as agreed by both parties.
During the current financial year under review, the following Board Committee Members were appointed for Audit
and Risk Committee: Mr Eddie Mbalo ,Ms Ephenia Motlhamme, Ms Lebogang Ndadana and both members serve a
three year terms. Mr Petersan Mothudi was appointed as the chairperson of Audit and Risk Committee for a period
a year. Mr Lufuno Nematswerani has been appointed as Remuneration Committee Chairperson. The following
Board members have been appointed during the current financial year under review: Ms Busi Mhanga Chairperson,
Mr Eddie Mbalo Deputy Chairperson, and Mr Clarence Hamilton.
Physical address

Postal address

35 Rissik Street
Surrey House
Johannesburg
2000

P O Box 61601
Marshalltown
2107
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Internal Audit and External Auditors.
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Nexia SAB&T is currently appointed as Internal Auditors for a period of three years, their contract is ended on the
31 March 2019, and management is in the process of procuring suitable internal audit services.
Auditor General South Africa (AGSA) has been appointed as Gauteng Film Commission External Auditors, in terms
of section 188 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996.
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GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION (NPC) (REGISTRATION NUMBER 2001/013031/08)

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO GAUTENG
PROVINCIAL LEGISLATURE ON GAUTENG FILM
COMMISSION (NPC)
Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion
1. I have audited the financial statements of the Gauteng Film Commission (NPC) set out on pages 62 to 100,
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019, the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity, and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, as well as the
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
2.

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Gauteng Film Commission (NPC) as at 31 March 2019, and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the requirements of the Companies Act of
South Africa, 2008 (Act No. 71 of 2008) (Companies Act).

Basis for the opinion
3. I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of this auditor’s report.
4.

I am independent of the entity in accordance with sections 290 and 291 of the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of ethics for professional accountants (IESBA code), parts 1 and 3 of the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(including International Independence Standards) and the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit
in South Africa. I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
IESBA codes.

5.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my unqualified
opinion.

Other matters
6. I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Restatement of corresponding figures
7.

As disclosed in Note 20 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 31 March 2018 were restated
as a result of an error in the financial statements of the entity at, and for the year ended, 31 March 2019.

Unaudited supplementary schedules.
The supplementary information set out on pages 101 to103 does not form part of the financial statements and
is presented as additional information. I have not audited this schedule and, accordingly, I do not express an
opinion on it.

Responsibilities of accounting authority for the financial statements
9. The board of directors, which constitutes the accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS and requirements of the Companies Act and
for such internal control as the accounting authority determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION (NPC) (REGISTRATION NUMBER 2001/013031/08)

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO GAUTENG
PROVINCIAL LEGISLATURE ON GAUTENG FILM
COMMISSION (NPC)
10. In preparing the financial statements, the accounting authority is responsible for assessing the Gauteng Film
Commission (NPC)’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the appropriate governance structure either
intends to liquidate the entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
11. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with the ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
12. A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included in the annexure
to this auditor’s report.

Report on the audit of the annual performance report
13. The entity is not required to prepare a report on its performance against predetermined objectives, as it does
not fall within the ambit of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) and such reporting is also not required
in terms of the entity’s specific legislation.

Report on the audit of compliance with legislation
Introduction and scope
14. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to
report material findings on the compliance of the entity with specific matters in key legislation. I performed
procedures to identify findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance.
15. I did not perform an audit on compliance with the specific matters in key legislation set out in the general
notice issued in terms of the PAA as the entity does not fall within the ambit of the PFMA.

Other information
16. The accounting authority is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report which includes the directors’ report, the audit committee’s report
and the company secretary’s certificate as required by the Companies Act of South Africa, 2008 (Act No. 71
of 2008) (Companies Act). The other information does not include the financial statements and the auditor’s
report.
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17. My opinion on the financial statements do not cover the other information and I do not express an audit opinion
or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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18. In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or my knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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Internal control deficiencies
19. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements; however, my objective was not to
express any form of assurance on it. The matters reported below are limited to the significant internal control
deficiencies that resulted in the basis for the qualified opinion.
20. Adequate oversight responsibility was not exercised by the leadership in ensuring that entity specific transactions
are compliant with applicable laws and regulations.
21. Senior management did not adequately review annual financial statements with applicable laws and regulations,
as a result material misstatements were identified in the operating expenditure line item of the annual financial
statements.

Johannesburg
31 July 2019

GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

			

BIG IDEAS. PERFECT LOCATIONS.

61

GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION (NPC) (REGISTRATION NUMBER 2001/013031/08)

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO GAUTENG
PROVINCIAL LEGISLATURE ON GAUTENG FILM
COMMISSION (NPC)
Annexure – Auditor-general’s responsibility for the audit.
1.

As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, I exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout my audit of the financial statements and on the Gauteng Film Commission (NPC)’s
compliance with respect to the selected subject matters.
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Financial statements
2. In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as described in this auditor’s report, I
also:
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•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control

•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Gauteng Film Commission (NPC)’s internal control

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the board of directors, which constitutes the accounting authority.

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of the board of directors, which constitutes the accounting authority’s use
of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements. I also conclude, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Gauteng Film Commission (NPC)’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements about the material uncertainty or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify the opinion on the financial statements. My conclusions are based on the information available to me at
the date of this auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause a Gauteng Film Commission
(NPC) to cease continuing as a going concern

•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation

•

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. I am responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. I remain solely responsible for my audit opinion.

Communication with those charged with governance
3. I communicate with the accounting authority regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify
during my audit.
4.

I also confirm to the accounting authority that I have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and communicate all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to have a
bearing on my independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.
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Subsequent events
The Board of Directors are not aware of any matter or circumstances arising for the year ending 31 March 2019.

Governance principles
The Board has reaffirmed the Gauteng Film Commission’s commitment to sound governance practices and, in
particular, to the Companies Act as well as the principles underlying the King IV Report on Corporate Governance
published in 2002 which focuses on integrated reporting on social, health, ethical and environmental issues on
reporting. In this regard, the Board is constantly reviewing its corporate governance structures and practices to align
it with national best practice. The Gauteng Film Commission is committed to conducting its affairs with integrity and
holds itself responsible and accountable towards its stakeholders and clients.

Code of ethics
The Gauteng Film Commission is managed ethically and in line with the Code, which is based on the fundamental
principles of fairness, transparency, integrity, reliability, responsibility and honesty.
The Code commits Gauteng Film Commission management and staff to high standards of conduct in their dealings
with its clients and stakeholders. No incidents of unethical conduct that required further investigation or action was
reported during the period under review.

Values
The Gauteng Film Commission promotes sound values and is committed to the Batho Pele principles.

The Gauteng Film Commission governance structures:
Accountability to the Funder
The Gauteng Film Commission is accountable to the Department of Sport, Arts, Culture and Recreation (DSACR),
under the leadership of the MEC Ms Faith Mazibuko.

Accountability to the MEC for Gauteng Department of Sport, Arts, Culture and Recreation

The Annual Performance Plan (APP), Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) and a Budget for the Gauteng Film
Commission were submitted to the Department of Sport, Arts, Culture and Recreation. These documents were
subsequently approved by the Board of Directors, the Head of the Department (HOD) and the Member of
Executive Council (MEC).
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The MEC in her capacity as representative of the Department of Sport, Arts, Culture and Recreation (DSACR),
holds the Board accountable for managing and controlling the operations of the Gauteng Film Commission in
compliance with its mandate.
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Tax Exemption.
The Gauteng Film Commission tax exemption application has been granted by South African Revenue Services
(SARS), in terms of section 30(3) of the Income Tax Act No 58 of 1962.
The Board is responsible for:
•
•

Approving the corporate strategy, business plans, budgets and monitoring management closely in implementing
it;
Ensuring that the Gauteng Film Commission complies with all relevant laws and regulations and Codes of Best
Practice; and ensuring Risk Management processes are in place.

Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
The Chief Executive Officer is charged with the day-to-day management of the Gauteng Film Commission
operations and assists the Board of Directors in providing Strategic and Policy direction to the Gauteng Film
Commission. In terms of the operation of the Gauteng Film Commission Industry Support Development and
Marketing & Communications are regarded as the core function of the organisation in line with the mandate of
the organisation. The core function is assisted by the support function, i.e. Finance, Human Resources, Legal and
Governance, Information Communication Technology (ICT) and Stakeholder Relations. All these managers’ report
directly to the CEO.

Board Committees
To assist it in discharging its responsibilities, the Board has established the following committees: Audit and Risk
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Specification and Evaluation Committees, Bid Adjudication Committee,
Social and Ethics Committee’s and Management Committee as reflected on the board charter.

Audit and Risk Committee
The Audit and Risk Committee oversees Financial Reporting, Internal Control, Risk Management, funding plans
and Strategies, Compliance, Corporate Governance and Policies. It is supported by the Management Committee
in fulfilling its duties with regard to financial Risk Management. Its responsibilities pertaining to risk management
include, but are not limited to:
•
•
•
•

Reviewing the Gauteng Film Commission Risk Management policy and strategy;
Assisting the Board in evaluating the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management process;
Reviewing the Gauteng Film Commission significant risk exposures and making recommendations to the Board
of Directors on appropriate mitigation strategies.
Appointment of Internal Auditors.
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Remuneration Committee
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The governing body should consider allocating oversight remuneration to a dedicated committee, or adding to the
responsibilities of another committee as is appropriate for GFC. All members of the committee for remuneration
should be non-executive members of the governing body with the majority being independent non-executive
members of the governing body. The committee should be chaired by an independent non-executive.
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Bid Adjudication Committee (BAC)
This committee is responsible for all competitive bids that are awarded by Gauteng Film Commission, according to
Treasury Regulations 16A6.2a Government Entity’s supply chain management systems must, inter alia, provide for
the adjudication of bids through a Bid Adjudication Committee, the establishment, composition and functioning of
bid specification, evaluation and adjudication committees and selection of the bid adjudication members.
According to paragraph 2.4 the Code of Conduct for Bid Adjudication Committees. The Bid Adjudication Committee
must consider the recommendations/reports of the Specification and Evaluation Committee and depending on the
delegated powers make:
•
•
•

A final award; or
A recommendation to the Accounting Authority to make final award.
Make another recommendations to the Accounting Authority.

Specification and Evaluation Committee
This committee is accountable for monitoring and overseeing the implementation of the procurement policy,
procedures, code of conduct and monitoring adherence whilst also making recommendations to the Bid Adjudication
Committee.

Social and Ethics Committee
The establishment of a Social and Ethics committee is a statutory requirements. The governing body of the GFC
not so obliged should consider allocating oversight of, and reporting on, organisation ethics, responsible corporate
citizenship, and sustainable development and stakeholder relationships to a dedicated committee, or adding it to the
responsibilities of another committee as is appropriate for the organisation.
The responsibilities of the Social and Ethics committee should include statutory duties (if applicable) and any other
responsibilities delegated to it by the governing body. The Social and Ethics committee should, subject legal provision,
have executive and non-executive members, with majority being non-executive members of the governing body.

Nomination Committee
This Board of Directors should consider allocating the oversight of the following to a dedicated committee or adding
it to the responsibilities of another committee as is appropriate for the Gauteng Film Commission:
The process for nominating, electing and appointing members of the governing body.
Succession planning in respect of governing body members.
Evaluation of the performance of the governing body.
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Board Committees’ composition:
Name of director

Resignation

Date

Date

Ms Busi Mhaga-Chairperson

02 May 2018

Mr Andile Mbeki-Executive

15 September 2014

Mr Eddie Mbalo-Deputy Chairperson

02 May 2018

-

Ms Simangele Sekgobela-Executive

27 February 2017

-

Mr Keith Khoza-Non Executive

01 November 2012

-

Mr Elliot Maluleke PA (SA) & AGA (SA)- Executive

01 March 2009

-

Mr Clarence Hamilton-Non Executive

02 May 2018

-

Ms Joy Ngoma-Non Executive

01 August 2017

-

Mr David Bensusan-Non Executive

01 August 2017

-

Mr Johan Van Der Walt CA (SA)-Chairperson

24 May 2007

31 October 2018

Ms Esther Makau

24 May 2007

31 October 2018

Ms Ephenia Motlhamme

01 November 2018

-

Ms Lebogang Ndadana

01 November 2018

-

Mr Petersan Mothudi CA (SA) – Chairperson

24 November 2009

-

Mr Eddie Mbalo

28 October 2018

-

Mr Keith Khoza-Chairperson

29 October 2018

-

Mr Eddie Mbalo

29 October 2018

-

Ms Anthea Mokoena

23 February 2016

-

Mr Elliot Maluleke-PA (SA) & AGA (SA)

01 March 2009

-

Remuneration
Committee

Mr Lufuno Nematswerani-Chairperson

01 November 2018

-

Ms Joy Mgoma

01 November 2018

-

Ms Busi Mhaga

29 October 2018

-

Social and Ethics
Committee

Mr David Bensusan-Chairperson

29 October 2018

-

Mr Clarence Hamilton

29 October 2018

-

Board Committee

Audit and Risk
Committee
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Appointment
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National Diploma

in Education

Current

and term

Resigned

31 March

2019.

Chairperson.

Chief

Executive

Officer.

Ms B. Mhaga

Mr A. Mbeki
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2021.

31st May

African Studies

Leadership and

Certificates in ICT

Business admin

Master’s in

Education

Master’s in

B.Ed.

Planning.

and Regional

Diploma in Town

Technology.

Bachelor of

Philosophy.

office

structure

ending

Bachelor of

of term

of GFC

Credentials

expiry

in terms

Name

Date of

Designation

Television.

Film and

Management.

Business.

expertise

Area of

None.

None.

Board

Other

None

Nomination.

REMCO

Committees

Membership in
attended

attended

-

to suspension.

meetings due

did not attend

Mr A.Mbeki

3 out of 5.

meetings

meetings

5 out of 5

No of Other

No of Board
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Board Committees’ composition and record of attendance:
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Current and
term ending
31st August
2020.

Current and
term ending
31st August
2020.

Board
Member.

Mr D. Bensusan

BA in Film Production.
BA (Hons).
Master’s in Education
LLB.

Minor African
Studies.

Communication.

BA in Mass

Philosophy of
education

Digital Marketing
Scriptwriting/Creative writing
Content Development
Digital media
Campaign Development

None.

None.

Social and Ethics
Committee.

Social and Ethics
Committee.

4 out of 5.

2 out of 5.

5 out of 5.

Board
Member.

Corporate.
Governance.

SAIPA.

None.

Ms J. Ngoma

Auditing.

SAICA Articles.

AGASA.

Finance.

B Com.

None.

None.

None

Chief
Financial
Officer.

Emalahleni
Housing Company.
Department of
Trade Industry.
(DTI)
National
Consumer
Council(NCC).

Mr E. Maluleke

Human Resource.

Finance.

Corporate
Governance.

5 out of 5.

Senior Secondary
Teachers Diploma
Executive Leadership
Corporate Governance
B Com
B Com (Hons)
MSc (Economics)

Current
and term
ending 30th
September
2021.

meetings

Acting Chief
Executive
Officer.

Committees

Ms S. Sekgobela

Board
attended

expertise

of term office

of GFC

Credentials

Board

Membership in

No of
Other

in terms
Area of

Date of expiry

Designation

structure

Name
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Board Committees’ composition and record of attendance

Board
Member.

Deputy
Chairperson.

Mr C. Hamilton

Mr E. Mbalo
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Board
Member.

structure

Current and
term ending
31st May
2021.

Current and
term ending
31st May
2021.

Current and
term ending
31st May
2021.

Dip in Broadcast
Engineering.

Bachelor of Applied Arts
Photographic Arts
Post Graduate
Diploma in Arts.

Post graduate
diploma in
Administrative
studies.

. Master’s in Public
Admin.

Credentials

Infrastructure
capital.

Broadcasting,
Media and
Governance

GAIA

None.

None.

Board

Film,

Directing
Scriptwriting
Business in Film
Production.

Administration.

Public

expertise

ARCO.

Social and Ethics
Committee.

Committees

5 out of 5.

5 out of 5.

-

attended

meetings

of term office

of GFC

Mr K. Khoza

Name

Board

Membership in

No of
Other

in terms
Area of

Date of expiry

Designation

4 out of 5.

2 out of 5.

2 out of 5.

attended

meetings

Other

No of
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The table below summarises the attendance of the various committees from 1 April 2018 until 31 March 2019:

Details

Board
Committee

Nomination
Committee

Social and
Ethics
Committee

Audit and Risk
Committee

Remuneration
Committee

TOTAL MEETINGS

5

1

1

4

1

Other
Meetings
(Note 1)

Total

5

17

Ms B. Mhaga

5

1

-

-

1

3

10

Ms S. Sekgobela

5

1

1

4

1

5

17

Mr E. Maluleke

5

1

4

1

5

16

-

-

1

1

4

-

1

-

4

11

Ms J. Mngoma

2

Ms E. Mbalo

5

Mr C. Hamilton

5

1

-

-

2

8

Mr J. Van Der Walt

-

-

-

2

-

-

2

Mr D. Bensusan

4

-

1

-

-

4

9

-

1

Mr P. Mothudi

-

-

4

-

3

7

Ms E. Motlhamme

1

-

2

1

3

7

Ms L. Ndadana

-

-

2

-

3

5

Mr L. Nematswerani

1

-

-

1

2

4

Note 1:

Other meetings relates to the following meetings which were held during the current financial year under review .i.e. Induction
Meeting with the MEC, Legislature Budget Meeting, Planning Session Meeting, Board Training and Enhanced Strategy Meeting.

Integrated risk management
In line with the Companies Act the Board of Directors is responsible for the management of the risks pertaining
to the business of the Gauteng Film Commission. The Board has delegated this authority to the Chief Executive
Officer.
Whilst the line manager of each division within the Gauteng Film Commission has the primary responsibility for
identifying and managing risks inherent to the operations of his/her division, the Audit and Risk Committee develops
and reviews risks management strategies, policies and procedures to ensure that they are appropriate for the
Gauteng Film Commission.
Management Committee (MANCO) reports to the Chief Executive Officer and submits Annual reports to the
Audit and Risk Committee, providing assurance on the management of significant risks or exposure. The internal
audit function independently audits the adequacy and effectiveness of the Gauteng Film Commission’s risk, internal
control and governance processes and this function is outsourced.
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Strategic risks
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Strategic risks can be defined as the uncertainties and untapped opportunities embedded in our strategic intent and
how well they are executed. As such, they are key matters for the board and impinge on the whole business, rather
than just isolated unit.
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Liquidity risks.
The liquidity risk is the risk that Gauteng Film Commission may be unable to meet short term financial demands.
This usually occurs due to the inability to convert a security or hard assets to cash without a loss of capital and/or
income in the process.

Compliance risks
Compliance risk relates to negative impact originating from non-compliance with all applicable legislation and
regulations.
The Audit and Risk Committee assist the Board of Directors in complying with all applicable statutory and regulatory
requirements.
The compliance risk is managed through creating awareness of the regulatory requirements, and monitoring
compliance with legislative requirements

Operational risks.
Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people
and systems.
This risk category is managed through a system of internal controls, which is based on approved policies and
procedures for initiation, verification and reconciliation of transactions, and adequate segregation of incompatible
duties. The operational risk category includes the following risk areas: Fraud, Financial management, Legal Risk,
Human Resources risk, Information Technology Risk, Business Continuity and Taxation.
The Audit and Risk Committee and Board of Directors have approved finance policies which include anti-fraud and
corruption policy and avoidance of wasteful and fruitless expenditure. No incidents of fraud or irregular activities
were reported during the financial under review.

Reputational risk
Reputational risk is the risk of damage to the Gauteng Film Commission image which may impair its ability to retain
and generate more business.
The Gauteng Film Commission manages its reputational risk through its on-going evaluation and management of the
significant risk types highlighted above. The Public Relation and Communications Manager is in charge the Corporate
Communications portfolio.

The Audit and Risk Committee assists the Board in discharging its duties to ensure that the Gauteng Film Commission
maintains adequate accounting records, internal controls and systems designed to provide reasonable assurance on
the integrity and reliability of financial information and to safeguard its assets.
The effectiveness of these internal control systems is monitored through management reviews, formalised reporting
and internal audits. The Internal Audit function, under the direction of the Audit and Risk Committee, is outsourced
to an independent service provider. It operates in terms of an Internal Audit Charter, which was reviewed and
BIG IDEAS. PERFECT LOCATIONS.
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approved by the Audit and Risk Committee and approved by the Board of Directors during the financial period
under review.
The Internal Audit function reports functionally to the Audit and Risk Committee and administratively to the Chief
Executive Officer and its staff have full and unrestricted access to the Chairperson of the Audit and Risk Committee.
The Audit and Risk Committee conducts its own review of the effectiveness of the Internal Audit function.
All operations, business activities and support functions are subject to internal review. The Internal Audit plan
is based on key risk areas identified from risk assessment and the audits are planned and executed to provide
management with independent assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control systems.

……………………….
Anthea Mokoena					
Company Secretary and Legal Manager
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1. Audit and Risk Committee responsibility
The Audit and Risk Committee has discharged all of its responsibilities set out in terms of applicable requirements
of the King IV as well as in its adopted Terms of Reference, the role should provide oversight independent oversight
of amongst others:
In the conduct of its duties, the Audit and Risk Committee has reviewed the following:
•
•
•
•
•
•

The effectiveness of the GFC assurance functions and services, which particular focus on combined assurance
arrangements, including external assurance service providers, internal and finance
function.
The integrity of Annual Financial Statements and, to the extend delegated by Board of Directors, other external
reports issued by the GFC.
A statutory Audit and Risk Committee has the power to make decision regarding its statutory duties, and is
accountable for its performance in this regard.
If the governing body delegates risk governance to the Audit and Risk Committee, the Audit and Risk Committee
should satisfy itself that it dedicates time to its responsibility.
Audit and Risk Committee should oversee the management of financial and other risk that affect the integrity
of external reports issued by GFC.
The Audit and Risk Committee should meet annually with internal and external auditors respectively, without
management being present, to facilitate an exchange of view and concerns that may be appropriate for decision
in an open forum.

2. Internal Controls
The management of the Gauteng Film Commission continues to strive towards sustainable improvement in its
internal control. Nothing has come to the attention of the Audit and Risk Committee to indicate that a material
breakdown in the functioning of the internal controls, procedures and systems has occurred during the period under
review.
In the opinion of the Audit and Risk Committee, the internal controls and procedures of the Gauteng Film
Commission are considered to be appropriate in all material respects in relation to:
•
•
•

Achieving the business objectives of the Gauteng Film Commission;
Ensuring that the Gauteng Film Commission assets are adequately safeguarded; and
Ensuring that transactions undertaken are recorded in the Gauteng Film Commission’s records.

The Committee has evaluated the Annual Financial Statement and Annual Performance Reports of the Gauteng Film
Commission for the year ended 31 March 2019 and, based on the information provided and Annual Performance
Reports the Audit and Risk Committee, considers that they comply, in all material respects, with the requirements
of the applicable Companies Act.
………………………………….
Petersan Mothudi CA (SA)				
Chairperson

31 July 2019
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Notes

Mar 2019

Mar 2018
Restated

R

R

ASSETS

Non-current Assets

466,882

670,883

Property, plant and equipment

2

461,354

646,086

Intangible assets

3

5,528

24,797

982,407

667,223
567,714

Current Assets
Trade and other receivables

4

666,243

Cash and cash equivalents

5

316,164

99,509

TOTAL ASSETS

1,449,289

1,338,106

Accumulated Loss

(817,516)

(762,688)

65,492

122,117

2,201,313

1,978,677

Non-current liabilities
Obligation under Finance Lease

8

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

7

2,144,689

1,929,720

Obligation under Finance Lease

8

56,624

48,957

1,449,289

1,338,106

GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION
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TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
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GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION (NPC) (REGISTRATION NUMBER 2001/013031/08)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (SOCI)
For the year that ended 31 March 2019

Notes

Mar 2019

Mar 2018
Restated

R

R

Government grants

10

34,434,000

29,016,000

Other income

11

13,948

25,011

Depreciation

2

(252,099)

(275,513)

Amortisation of intangible assets

3

(2,125)

(30,932)

Operating expenses

22

(34,552,251)

(29,847,850)

(358,527)

(1,113,284)

Operating Loss
14

325,542

259,646

Finance costs

15

(21,843)

(28,471)

(54,828)

(882,109)

Loss for the year

GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION
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Interest received
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GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION (NPC) (REGISTRATION NUMBER 2001/013031/08)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (SoCE)
For the year that ended 31 March 2019

Note

Mar 2019
R

Accumulated Profit:
Restated balance 31 March 2017
Prior year error
Loss for the year

Restated balance as at 31 March 2018
Loss for the year

GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION
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Balance at 31 March 2019
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224,754
20

(105,333)
(882,109)
(762,688)
(54,828)
(817,516)

GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION (NPC) (REGISTRATION NUMBER 2001/013031/08)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW (SOCF)
For the year that ended 31 March 2019

Notes

Receipts from Customers
Cash paid to suppliers and employees

Mar 2019

Mar 2018
Restated

R

R

34,335,471

28,977,373

(34,251,075)

(28,952,045)

Cash generated from operations

17

84,396

25,328

Interest received

14

325,542

259,646

Finance cost

15

(21,843)

(28,471)

388,095

256,503

(122,486)

(220,604)

Net cash inflow from operations

Net cash outflows from investing activities
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment

2

(114,834)

(215,337)

Purchase of Intangibles

3

(7,652)

(5,267)

(48,954)

(42,334)

Obligation under finance lease
Repayment of finance lease

Net Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents for the year
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

5

7,670

6,623

(56,624)

(48,957)

216,655

(6,435)

99,509

105,944

316,164

99,509

GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION
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Net cash flow from financing activities

BIG IDEAS. PERFECT LOCATIONS.

77

GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION (NPC) (REGISTRATION NUMBER 2001/013031/08)

ACCOUNTING POLICY NOTES (APN)
For the year that ended 31 March 2019

1. Presentation of Annual Financial Statement
The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) and the Companies Act applicable requirements. The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared on
the historical basis except for the measurement of certain financial instruments at fair value, and incorporate the
principal accounting policies set out below. They are presented in South African rands.
An entity classifying expenses by function shall disclose additional information on the nature of expenses including
depreciation and amortisation and employee benefits expenses.
The choice between the function of expenses method and nature of expenses method depends on historical and
industry factors and the nature of entity. Both methods provide an indication of those cost that might vary directly
and indirectly.
GFC shall disclose, along with its significant accounting policies or other notes, the judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, that management has made in the process of applying the entity’s accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

1.1 Significant judgements and sources of estimation of uncertainty
In preparing the Annual Financial Statements, Management is required to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts represented in and related disclosures. Use of available information and the application of
judgement are inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from those estimates
which may be material to the Annual Financial Statements.
Impairment testing, taxation and also the residual value and useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment. An entity
shall disclose information about the assumptions it makes about the future, and other major sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk resulting in material adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial period. In respect of those assets and liabilities, the
notes shall include details of:
•
•
•
•
•

Their nature, and
Their carrying amount as at the end of the reporting period.
Estimated useful lives and residual values of assets
Effective Interest on Finance Lease
Significant judgements include:

Trade Receivables, Loans and Receivables.

GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION
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The GFC assesses its trade receivables for impairment at the end of each reporting period. In determining whether
an impairment loss should be recorded in a profit or loss, the company makes judgements as to whether there is
observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from financial assets.
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Provisions
Provisions were raised and Management determined estimates based on the information available. Additional
disclosures of these estimates of provision as disclosed as per:
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GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION (NPC) (REGISTRATION NUMBER 2001/013031/08)

ACCOUNTING POLICY NOTES (APN)
For the year that ended 31 March 2019

Provisions (cont)
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as assets when:
• It is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company; and
• The cost of the item can be measured reliably.

1.2 Property, Plant and Equipment.
Property, Plant and Equipment are initially measured at cost.
Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and cost
incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying
amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
Property, Plant and Equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses;
reassessment of assets is performed after every three periods.
Property, Plant and Equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their expected useful lives to their
estimated residual values.
The useful lives of items of Property, Plant and Equipment have been assessed as follows:
			
Item						Average useful life
Computer Hardware				
3 years.
Capitalized Lease Assets				
5 years.
Office Furniture 				
5 years.
Leasehold Improvement				5 years.
Office Equipment				
5 years.
The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period. If the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting
estimate.
The depreciation charge for each period is recognized in the profit or loss unless it is included in the carrying amount
of another asset.
The gain or loss arising from derecognition of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is included in profit or loss
when the item is derecognized. This gain or loss is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds,
if any, and the carrying amount of item.

An intangible asset is recognised when:
• It is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company; and
• The cost of the item can be measured reliably.
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1.3 Intangible assets.
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GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION (NPC) (REGISTRATION NUMBER 2001/013031/08)

ACCOUNTING POLICY NOTES (APN)
For the year that ended 31 March 2019

1.3 Intangible assets (cont).
Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.
Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as expenses when it is
incurred.
Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
An intangible asset is regarded as having indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no
foreseeable limit to the period over which the assets is expected to generate net cash inflow
Amortisation is not provided for these intangible assets, but they are tested for impairment annually and whenever
there is an indication that the assets may be impaired. For all other intangible assets amortisation is provided on a
straight-line basis over the useful lives.
The amortisation method of intangible assets is reviewed every period end.
An entity shall disclose in the summary of significant accounting policies:
(a) The measurement basis used in preparing the financial statements, and
(b) The other Accounting Policies used that are relevant to an understanding of the financial statements.
Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as infinite is an indicator
that the asset may be impaired. As a result, the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is
amortised over its useful life.
Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are not
recognised as intangible assets.
Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight-line basis, to their residual values as
follows:

Item				Useful life
Computer Software		
3 years.
1.4 Financial instruments
Categories of financial assets and financial liabilities

GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION
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The carrying amounts of each of the following categories, as specified in IFRS 9, shall be disclosed either in the
statement of financial position or in the notes: financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, showing separately.
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(i) those designated as such upon initial recognition or
subsequently in accordance with paragraph 6.7.1 of IFRS 9 and
(ii) those that meet the definition of held for trading in IFRS 9.
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GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION (NPC) (REGISTRATION NUMBER 2001/013031/08)

ACCOUNTING POLICY NOTES (APN)
For the year that ended 31 March 2019

1.4 Financial Instruments (cont).
For each type of risk arising from financial instruments, an entity shall disclose:
(a)
(b)
(c)

summary quantitative data about its exposure to that risk at the end of the reporting period. This disclosure
shall be based on the information provided internally to key management personnel of the entity (as defined
in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures), for example the entity’s board of directors or chief executive officer.
the disclosures required by paragraphs 35A–42, to the extent not provided in accordance with (a).
Concentrations of risk if not apparent from the disclosures made in accordance with (a) and (b).

Credit risk
For each type of risk arising from financial instruments, an entity shall disclose:
(a) summary quantitative data about its exposure to that risk at the end of the reporting period. This disclosure
shall be based on the information provided internally to key management personnel of the entity (as defined
in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures), for example the entity’s board of directors or chief executive officer.
(b) the disclosures required by paragraphs 35A–42, to the extent not provided in accordance with (a).
(c) concentrations of risk if not apparent from the disclosures made in accordance with (a) and (b).

Scope and objectives
The credit risk disclosures made in accordance with paragraphs 35F–35N shall enable users of financial statements
to understand the effect of credit risk on the amount, timing and uncertainty of future cash flows. To achieve this
objective, credit risk disclosures shall provide:
(b)

quantitative and qualitative information that allows users of financial statements to evaluate the amounts in the
financial statements arising from expected credit losses, including changes in the amount of
expected credit losses and the reasons for those changes; and

GFC shall explain its credit risk management practices and how they relate to the recognition and measurement
of expected credit losses. To meet this objective an entity shall disclose information that enables users of financial
statements to understand and evaluate:
(c)

how the instruments were grouped if expected credit losses were measured on a collective basis asset.

(a)

the amount that best represents its maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period
without taking account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements (eg netting agreements that do
not quality for offset in accordance with IAS 32); this disclosure is not required for financial instruments whose
carrying amount best represents the maximum exposure to credit risk.

To meet the objectives in paragraph 91, an entity shall disclose, at a minimum, the following information for each
class of assets and liabilities (see paragraph 94 for information on determining appropriate classes of assets and
liabilities) measured at fair value (including measurements based on fair value within the scope of this IFRS) in the
statement of financial position after initial recognition:
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For all financial instruments within the scope of this IFRS, but to which the impairment requirements in IFRS 9 are
not applied, an entity shall disclose by class of financial instrument:
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GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION (NPC) (REGISTRATION NUMBER 2001/013031/08)

ACCOUNTING POLICY NOTES (APN)
For the year that ended 31 March 2019

1.4 Financial Instruments (cont).
GFC shall explain the inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques used to apply the requirements in Section 5.5
of IFRS 9. For this purpose an entity shall disclose:
(a) the basis of inputs and assumptions and the estimation techniques used to:
(b) measure the 12-month and lifetime expected credit losses;
To enable users of financial statements to assess an entity’s credit risk exposure and understand its significant credit
risk concentrations, an entity shall disclose, by credit risk rating grades, the gross carrying amount of financial assets
and the exposure to credit risk on loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts. This information shall be provided separately for financial instruments:
For trade receivables, contract assets and lease receivables to which an entity applies paragraph 5.5.15 of IFRS 9,
the information provided in accordance with paragraph 35M may be based on a provision matrix (see paragraph
B5.5.35)

1.5 Finance lease.
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.
A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership.

Finance leases
Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the
fair value of the leased property or machinery, or if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.
The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit
in the lease. The lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding
liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant period rate
of on the remaining balance of the liability.
In terms of the new standard all leases should be classified as finance lease, unless the value is $ 5000 which is
considered to be of low value or the contract is less than twelve months (IFRS 16BC100)
Lease payments are recognised as expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The differences between
the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as operating lease assets. This
liability is not discounted.

GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION
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1.6 Impairment of assets.
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The company assesses assets at the end of the reporting period whether there is any indication that any of the
assets may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the assets.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss.
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GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION (NPC) (REGISTRATION NUMBER 2001/013031/08)

ACCOUNTING POLICY NOTES (APN)
For the year that ended 31 March 2019

1.6 Impairment of assets (cont).
An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amortization is recognized
immediately in profit or loss. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.
GFC assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognized in prior
periods for assets other than goodwill may no longer exist or may be decreased. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amounts of those assets are estimated.
A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortization other than
goodwill is recognized immediately in profit or loss. Any reversal impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a
revaluation increase.

1.7 Defined contribution plans.
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall due.
Payments made to industry-managed (or state plans) retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as defined
contribution plans where the company’s obligation under the schemes is equivalent to those arising in a defined
contribution retirement benefit plan.

1.8 Provisions and contingencies
Provisions are recognised when:
• The company has a present obligation as a result of past event;
• It is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation;
and
• A reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.
The amount of provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation.
Where some or all the expenditure required settling a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the
reimbursement shall be recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
if the entity settles the obligation. The reimbursement shall be treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised
for the reimbursement shall not exceed the amount of the provision.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.
If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under contract shall be recognised and measured
as a provision, contingent assets and contingent liabilities are recognised

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that:
• The company will comply with the conditions attaching to them; and
• The grant will be received.
Government grants are recognised as an income over the periods necessary to match them with the related cost
that they are intended to compensate.
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1.9 Government grants.
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GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION (NPC) (REGISTRATION NUMBER 2001/013031/08)

ACCOUNTING POLICY NOTES (APN)
For the year that ended 31 March 2019

1.9 Government grants (cont).
Government grants are income related and are presented as a credit in a profit and loss.
A government grant that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the entity with no future related cost is recognised as income for
the year ended in which it becomes receivable.
In cases where the grant is more than expenses, the surplus is recognised as deferred income, in our statement of
financial position.
Grant related income is:
The repayment of a grant related to income is applied first against any un-amortised deferred credit set up in
respect of the grant. To the extent that the repayment exceeds any such deferred credit, or where no deferred
credit exists, the repayment is recognised immediately as expenses.
The repayment of a grant related to an asset is recorded by increasing the carrying amount of the asset or reducing
the deferred income balance by the amount repayable.
The cumulative additional depreciation that would have been recognised to date as expenses in the absence of the
grant is recognised immediately as an expense.

1.10 Revenue and other Income recognition.
IFRS 15 it establishes a single and comprehensive framework for revenue recognition to apply consistently across
transaction, industries and capital markets, with a core principle (based on a five –step model to be applied to all
contract with customers).Gauteng film commission major source of revenue is Note 2(B) therefore IFRS 15 does
not impact significantly on the financial position and or financial performance of the commission. The standard is
used on a full retrospective method. Company’s other income recognition is as follows:

Interest Income
Interest is recognised as income in profit or loss using the effective interest rate method.

1.11 Related parties.

GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION
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The entity operates in an economic sector currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by the South
African Government. As a consequence of the constitutional independence of the three spheres of government in
South Africa, only entities within the national/provincial/local spheres of government are considered to be related
parties
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An entity shall disclose key management personnel compensation in total for each of the following categories:
(a) Short term employees benefits
(b) Post -employment benefit
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GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION (NPC) (REGISTRATION NUMBER 2001/013031/08)

ACCOUNTING POLICY NOTES (APN)
For the year that ended 31 March 2019

(c) Other long -term benefits
(d) Termination benefits and
(e) Share based payments

1.11 Related parties (cont).
If an entity has had related party transaction during the periods covered by the financial statement, it shall disclose
the nature of the related party relationship as well as information about those transaction and outstanding balances
,including commitments, necessary for users to understand the potential of the relationship on the financial statement.

1.12 Presentation currency
The Annual Financial Statements are presented in South African Rands, which is the functional and presentation
currency of the Board and amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand.

1.13 Accounting policies, accounting estimates and errors.
When initial application of an IFRS has an effect on the current period or any prior period, would have such an
effect except that it is impracticable to determine the amount of the adjustment, or might have an effect on future
periods, an entity shall disclose:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f )

The title of the IFRS
When applicable, that the change in accounting policy is made in accordance with its transitional provisions.
The nature of the change in accounting policy
When applicable, a description of the transitional provisions.
For the current period and each prior presented ,to be extent practicable ,the amount of the adjustment
for the current period and each prior period presented, to the
extent practicable, the amount of the adjustment

1.14 Fair Value Adjustment.
An entity shall disclose information that helps users of its financial statements assess both of the following:
(a) For assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring or non-recurring basis in the 		
statement of financial position after initial recognition, the valuation techniques and inputs used to develop
those measurements.
(b) for recurring fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3), the effect of the
measurements on profit or loss or other comprehensive income for the period.

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

The level of detail necessary to satisfy the disclosure requirements;
How much emphasis to place on each of the various requirements;
How much aggregation or disaggregation to undertake; and
Whether users of financial statements need additional information to evaluate the quantitative information
disclosed.

If the disclosures provided in accordance with this IFRS and other IFRSs are insufficient to meet the objectives in
paragraph 91, an entity shall disclose additional information necessary to meet those objectives.
BIG IDEAS. PERFECT LOCATIONS.

GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

To meet the objectives in paragraph 91, an entity shall consider all the following:

85

GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION (NPC) (REGISTRATION NUMBER 2001/013031/08)

ACCOUNTING POLICY NOTES (APN)
For the year that ended 31 March 2019

1.15 Financial reporting standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective
Standard or
interpretation

Detail

IFRS 16:

IFRS 16 changes the accounting substantially for lessees.

Finance Lease

The new standards eliminates a lessee’s classification of leases as either operating leases or finance leases.
Instead, almost all leases are “capitalized’ by recognizing a lease liability and right-of-use assets on the balance
sheet. There is little change for lessors.IFRS 16 is the new accounting standard for lease reporting under
International Financial Reporting (IFRS).It introduces a single accounting model that requires lessees to
recognize assets and liabilities on the balance sheet for all leases with a term of more than 12 months (unless
the underlying asset is of low value).
Under IFRS 16, lessees are required to record leases as assets, representing the right of use (ROU) of
an underlying leased asset (for example, a floor in an office building), and as liabilities, representing the
obligation to make lease payments. Lease liabilities are reported at present value of future payments, with
only depreciation and interest cost separated.

IFRS 17:

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (issued in May 2017):

Insurance
Contracts

The Standard that replaces IFRS 4, effective for Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 (earlier
application permitted only if IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 also applied), requires insurance liabilities to be measured
at a current fulfilment value and provides a more uniform measurement and presentation approach for all
insurance contracts. These requirements are designed to achieve the goal of consistent, principle-based
accounting for insurance contracts, giving a basis for users of financial statements to assess the effect
that insurance contracts have on the entity’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows. It
also requires similar principles to be applied to reinsurance contracts held and investment contracts with
discretionary participation features issued. As the Gauteng Film Commission, has neither issued insurance
contracts nor held reinsurance contracts, the Standard is not expected to have an effect on its financial
statements.

IFRS 23:

The judgement and estimates made to recognize and measure the effect of uncertain tax treatment
are reassessed whenever circumstances changes or when there is a new information that affects those
judgement.New information might include actions by the Tax Authorities, evidence that the Tax Authority
has taken a particular position in connection with a similar item, or the expiry of the Tax Authorities right to
examine a particular tax treatment.

Uncertainty
over income tax
treatments.

GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION
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IFRIC 23 states specifically that the absence of any comment from the Tax Authorities is unlikely to be, in
isolation, a change in circumstances or new information that would lead to a change in estimates.
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There are no new disclosure requirements in IFRIC 23.However, entities are reminded of the need to
disclose, in accordance with IAS 1.The judgement and estimates made in determining the uncertain treatment.
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2. Property, plant and equipment.
March
2019
Summary

Computer
Hardware

Office
Equipment

Capitalised
leased asset

Leasehold
improvements

Total

R

R

R

282,884

86,878

85,245

185,319

5,760

646,086

Cost at 1 April 2017

1,171,394

645,799

161,225

558,800

238,413

2,775,631

Accumulated
Depreciation

(888,510)

(558,921)

(75,980)

(373,481)

(232,653)

(2,129,545)

27,908

2,800

84,126

-

-

114,834

(148,989)

(35,220)

(23,219)

(42,999)

(1,672)

(252 099)

(32,535)

-

-

(343,800)

(234,010)

(610,345)

30,390

-

-

298,480

234,008

562,878

159,658

54,458

146,152

97,000

4,086

461,354

1,166,767

648,599

245,351

215,000

4,403

2,280,120

(99,199)

(118,000)

(317)

(1,818,766)

Carrying amount at

R

Office
Furniture

R

R

beginning

Additions
Depreciation
Write off- Cost
Write off – Accumulated
Depreciation

Carrying amount
Gross carrying amount
Accumulated
Depreciation

(1,007,109) (594,141)

GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION
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The Gauteng Film Commission does not have any assets which have been pledged as security and there are no
restrictions on any title of Property Plant and Equipment (PPE) during the current financial period under review.
The finance lease is disclosed under (note 8)
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2. Property, plant and equipment (cont).
Restated
March
2019
Summary

Computer
Hardware

Office
Equipment

Capitalised
leased asset

Leasehold
improvements

Total

R

R

R

346,017

70,726

41,757

250,606

4,751

713,857

Cost at 1 April 2017

1,056,931

629,647

112,143

558,800

234,009

2,591,530

Accumulated
Depreciation

(710,914)

(558,921)

(70,386)

(308,194)

(229,258)

(1,877,673)

145,699

16,152

49,082

-

4,404

215,337

(201,238)

-

(5,594)

(65,287)

(3,395)

(275,514

(31,236)

-

-

-

-

(31,236)

(275,514)

-

-

-

-

23,642

(31,236)

86,878

85,245

185,319

5,760

646,086

Gross carrying amount

1,171,394

645,799

161,225

558,800

238,413

2,775,631

Accumulated
Depreciation

(888,510) (558,921)

(75,980)

(373,481)

(232,653)

(2,129,545)

Carrying amount at

R

Office
Furniture

R

R

beginning

Additions
Depreciation
Write off- Cost
Write off – Accumulated
Depreciation

GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION
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ACCOUNTING POLICY NOTES (APN)
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3. Intangible assets.
Computer software.
Mar 2019

Mar 2018
Restated

R

R

Summary
Carrying amount at Beginning of the period

24,797

50,462

Cost

128,559

123,292

(103,762)

(72,830)

7,652

5,267

(2,125)

(30,932)

(128,558)

-

103,762

-

Carrying amount at End of the period

5,528

24,797

Gross carrying amount

7,653

128,559

(2,125)

(103,762)

Accumulated Amortisation
Additions
Amortisation
Write off Cost
Write off Accumulated Amortisation

Accumulated amortisation

There is no restriction on title of intangible assets and intangible pledges as security during the financial year under
review.

4. Trade and other receivables.
Mar 2019
R
Prepaid expenses
Sundry debtors
Rental deposit

367,031

114,063

1,907
65,532

207,189
14,322

229,878

229,878
1,895

Staff social fees
Credit Card

R

1,895
666,243

367
567,714

The carrying value of trade and other receivables approximates the fair value. The rental deposit was as the result
of relocating Gauteng Film Commission to 56 Main Street and as a result of contractual obligation with the landlord,
we are currently in discussion with the Landlord to finalise this matter.
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South African Revenue Service-Value Added Tax

Mar 2018
Restated
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ACCOUNTING POLICY NOTES (APN)
For the year that ended 31 March 2019

4. Trade and other receivables.
Trade and other receivables due but not impaired (cont.)
Trade and other receivables which are less than one month past due are not considered to be impaired. Gauteng
Film Commission does not have any trade debtors.
Trade and other receivables impaired.
During the current financial year under review there were no impairment on trade and other trade receivables.

5. Cash and cash equivalents.
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and bank balances. Cash and cash equivalents included in the cash
flow statement comprise of the following balance sheet amounts:
Mar 2019
R
Cash at bank - Current
- Call
Cash on hand

Mar 2018
Restated
R

278,495

64,786

34,669

34,278

3,000

445

316,164

99,509

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximates the fair value.

6. Financial assets by category.
The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:

Loans and receivables.

GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION
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Mar 2019
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Mar 2018
Restated

R

R

Trade and other receivables

666,243

567,714

Cash and cash equivalents

316,164

99,509

982,407

667,223
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GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION (NPC) (REGISTRATION NUMBER 2001/013031/08)

ACCOUNTING POLICY NOTES (APN)
For the year that ended 31 March 2019

7. Trade and other payables.
The carrying value of trade and other payables approximates the fair value. Trade and other payables have not been
discounted, due to the fact that Gauteng Film Commission pays its suppliers within thirty days.
Mar 2019

Mar 2018
Restated

R

R

22,104

27,762

Sundry Accrual - Leave

745,040

-

Sundry Accrual - Other

991,053

1,546,508

Other Creditors

386,492

-

-

355,450

Accruals - Medical

Sundry Accrual - South African Revenue Service

2,144,689

1,929,720

8. Obligation under Finance Lease
As at 31 March 2019, the company had obligation under finance lease repayable .i.e. minimum lease payments of R
70,800 was paid annually. The agreement does not provide for contingent rental payments. There is no escalation
on the contract of two photo copy machines with Panasonic during the period under review:

Reconciliation between the total minimum lease payments and their present value.
March 2019

Up to 1 period

2-5 Years

Totals

Minimum lease payments

70,800

70,800

141,600

Finance cost

(14,176)

(5,308)

(19,484)

Present value

56,624

65,492

122,116

141,600

212,400

March 2018
Restated
Minimum lease payments

70,800

Finance cost

(21,843)

(19,483)

(41,326)

Present value

48,957

122,117

171,074

Mar 2019
R

Mar 2018
Restated
R

Current liability

56,624

48,957

Non-current liability

65,492

122,117

122,116

171,074
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9. Financial liability by category
The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the items below

Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
Mar 2019

Trade and other payables
Finance Lease

Mar 2018
Restated

R

R

1,399,649

1,452,851

122,116

171,074

1,521,765

1,623,925

10. Government grants
The government grant is received from the Department of Sport, Arts, Culture and Recreation for funding Gauteng
Film Commission mandate in line with the approved business plan. The grant is not conditional and does not have
other contingencies attached to it,
Mar 2019

Government grant - Main allocation
- Conditional

Mar 2018
Restated

R

R

34,434,000

28,766,000

34,434,000

250,000
29,016,000

11. Other income
Other income arises as the result of insurance settlements for assets lost during the financial year under review:		
		
Mar 2019

GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION
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Proceeds from insurance claims
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Mar 2018
Restated

R

R

13,948

25,011
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ACCOUNTING POLICY NOTES (APN)
For the year that ended 31 March 2019

12. Operating expenses
The operating profit is stated after taking the following items into account:
Mar 2019

Mar 2018
Restated

R

R

252,099

275,513

148,989

201,238

1,672

3,394

Office equipment

23,219

5,594

Office Furniture

35,220

-

Capitalized lease assets

42,999

65,287

1,968,218

2,031,722

194,105

1,535

2,125

30,932

16,760,747

17,105,975

Assets written offs

72,261

7,594

Professional fees

602,891

721,259

30,925

77,800

External auditors

317,668

389,454

Internal auditors

254,298

254,005

Operating lease charges

912,677

1,891,325

Property (Note 1)

885,884

1,891,325

26,793

-

5,011,200

4,230,810

Notes

Depreciation

2

Computer hardware
Leasehold improvements

Provident fund
Repairs and maintenance
Amortisation of intangibles

3

Employee costs

Payroll Services

Equipment

Directors Emoluments
Executive directors

13.1

4,742,200

4,045,810

Non-Executive directors

13.2

269,000

185,000

Note 1.
Operating lease charges relates to rental and staff parking incurred, previous year amount was incorrectly disclosed.
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ACCOUNTING POLICY NOTES (APN)
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13.1 Executive directors’ emoluments

March 2019

Salary

Other

13th
Cheque/
Bonus

Medical
Aid

R

R

R

R

Provident
fund

Total

R

R

Mr E Maluleke

1,310,669

-

131,388

105,650

221,888

1,769,594

Mr A Mbeki (Note1)

1,608,076

268,941

-

-

303,589

2,180,606

792,000

-

-

-

-

792,000

3,710,745

268,941

131,388

105,650

525,477

4,742,200

Mr E Maluleke

1,221,413

-

124,538

110,108

163,075

1,619,134

Mr A Mbeki

1,291,869

-

-

-

225,449

1,517,318

909,358

-

-

-

-

909,358

3,422,640

-

124,538

110,108

388,524

4,045,810

Ms S Sekgobela

March 2018
Restated

Ms Sekgobela

Note 1:
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The amount relates to leave pay out which was paid to Mr Mbeki who resigned on the 31 March 2019, following a
mutual agreement.
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13.2 Non-executive director’s emoluments

Mar 2019

Mar 2018
Restated

R

R

Mr E Mbalo

53,500

Mr S Mafu

-

52,000

Ms B Mhaga

61,500

-

Ms C Hamilton

38,500

-

Mr S Maake Ka Ncube

-

20,500

Ms T Mtshali-Jones

-

13,500

Mr J Van der Walt

-

11,000

Mr P Mothudi

16,500

11,000

Mr P Komane

-

11,000

Mr M Mojapelo

-

11,000

Ms J Ngoma

22,000

27,500

Ms E Motlhamme

22,000

-

Ms L Ndadana

16,500

-

Mr D Bensusan

38,500

27,500

269,000

185,000

GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION
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Total

-
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13.2 Non-executive director’s emoluments cont.
Board fees includes all other Board members who are also serving in other committees, i.e. Remuneration
Committee (REMCO), Audit & Risk and Bid Committees. The payment also include fees for attending Legislature
budget meeting by the Chairperson and deputy Chairperson.

13.3 Key Management Emoluments
Mar 2019

Mar 2018
Restated

R

R

5,672,458

5,614,124

13th Cheque

542,693

573,044

Medical aid

183,310

171,145

62,903

-

Salaries

Other
Leave pay-out
Provident fund

-

56,828

876,162

666,610

7,337,526

7,081,751

The Gauteng Film Commission 2019 Key Management Emoluments include the following management units’
.i.e. Industry Support and Development, Marketing and Communications, Legal and Governance, Information
Communication Technology (ICT), Stakeholder Relation and Human Resources and Research.

14. Interest income

Interest received

Mar 2019

Mar 2018
Restated

R

R

325,542

259,646

Mar 2019

Mar 2018
Restated

R

R

21,843

28,471

15. Finance cost

Long term borrowings

GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

16. Taxation
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Gauteng Film Commission is incorporated as a Non-Profit Company (NPC) which has as its main objective to
facilitate and promote film production in Gauteng Province
The Gauteng Film Commission has been granted tax exemption during the current financial period under review.
The tax exemption has been granted in terms of the requirements of the Public Benefit Organisation (PBO) set out
in terms of Section 30(3) of the Income Tax Act No 58 of 1962 (the Act).
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GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION (NPC) (REGISTRATION NUMBER 2001/013031/08)

ACCOUNTING POLICY NOTES (APN)
For the year that ended 31 March 2019

17. Reconciliation of net profit before taxation to cash generated from operations

Notes

Net loss for the year

Adjusted for items separately disclosed on face of the
cash flow statement

Mar 2019

Mar 2018
Restated

R

R

(54,828)

(882,109)

(303,699)

(231,175)

Interest received

14

(325,542)

(259,646)

Finance cost

15

21,843

28,471

cash equivalents

326,485

314,040

Depreciation

252,099

275,513

2,125

30,932

72,261

7,595

Adjusted for changes in working capital

116,438

824,571

Increase in accounts receivable

(98,529)

(143,956)

Increase in accounts payable

214,967

968,527

Cash generated from operations

84,396

25,328

Adjusted for items not involving the flow of cash and

Amortisation of intangibles
Assets write offs

18. Related party transactions.

Notes

Government grant- Main allocation
- Conditional
Key Management Emoluments (refer to Note 13.1 & 13.3)
Department of Sports,Arts,Culture and Recreation (DSACR)

Mar 2019

Mar 2018
Restated

R

R

34,434,000
-

28,766,000
250,000

12,079,726

11,127,561

13,600

-
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During the current financial year under review the Gauteng Film Commission had the following related party
transaction with the Department of Sport, Art, Culture and Recreation (DSACR) and Key Management Emolument’s:
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19. Risk management
Capital risk management
The company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the company’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide benefits for stakeholders to maintain an optimal capital structure. The capital structure
of the company consists of debt, which includes the cash and cash equivalents disclosures in (note 5).

Financial risk management
The company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: interest risk and liquidity risk.
The company’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the company’s financial performance.

Credit risk
Credit risk relates to the financial assets and simply speaking, it is the risk that we will suffer a financial loss.
Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and trade receivables. The company only deposits cash
with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter party.

Liquidity risk
The company’s risk to liquidity is as a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The company
manages liquidity risk through an on-going review of future commitments and credit facilities.
The table below analyses the company’s financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the statement of financial position to the contractual maturity
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within twelve
months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.
Liquidity risk relates to financial liabilities and it is a kind of ‘opposite” to credit risk. It is the risk will not meet our
obligation from financial liabilities to be settled with cash or financial assets:
Less than 1
period

Between 2
and 5 periods

2,144,689

-

March 2019
Trade and other payables
Finance Lease

56,624

65,493

March 2018
GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION
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Restated
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Trade and other payables
Finance Lease
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1,929,720
48,957

122,117
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ACCOUNTING POLICY NOTES (APN)
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Market risk.
The risk that fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in prices.
Market risk comprises of the following:

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk arises on interest-bearing financial instruments recognised in the statement of financial position.
The company’s interest rate risk arises from short term investments. These investments are issued at variable rates
which exposes the company to cash flow interest rate risk
Based on the simulation basis and assuming other variables remain constant in the sensitivity calculations, the impact
on the post-tax profit of a 1% shift either way would be a maximum of an increase and decrease of R1,097 and
R2,193 respectively.

Currency rate risk
Arises on financial instruments that are denominated in foreign currency.

Other price risk
Other price risk arises from financial instruments because of changes in commodity price or equity price.

20. Prior Year Error
Prior year error is a result of VAT charged on funding paid to beneficiaries in relation to Production Support and
Audience Development as part of GFC mandate to service the Audi Visual Industry. The total amount for the error
is R74,120: R105,333(2017/8). GFC should have recognised input tax in accordance with section 8(5)A and section
11(t) of the Value Added Tax Act 89 of 1991, which stipulates that VAT for deemed supplies should be charged at
zero rated for funding given to beneficiaries.
The effect of correcting prior year error resulted in the following:
Effect in 2017/2018

Increase in Audience Development

12,362

Increase in Production Support

92,971

Decrease in Profit

(105,333)

Decrease in Accounts Payable

105,333

Decrease in Retained Earnings

(105,333)

Management have made prior year error adjustment in relation to 2017/18 financial year, it is not practical to go
further than this due to the fact that it would be difficult for management to retrieve the records due to the fact
that GFC relocated premises to new offices.
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21. Commitments
Commitments relates to Industry Support Developments (ISD), Marketing and Communications and Management
of GFC outstanding payments as at year end.

R

R
-

75,000

Sonrise Entertainment

-

65,000

Grey Communications (Pty) Ltd

-

44,500

Favour Media (Pty) Ltd

-

50,000

9,000

60,000

Kasi Distribution (Pty) Ltd

-

25,000

Sepamla Fashion Consulting

-

48,000

Noble Pictures

-

50,000

Lelentle Trading and Projects CC

-

60,000

Big Media Publishers (Pty) Ltd

-

230,264

Pure Brown Designs

99,247

99,247

The MVP Productions

35,200

-

Motheo wa Msungo

10,000

-

4,500

-

Z7 Media House

120,000

-

SML Production

24,000

-

Kas Media

24,000

-

Zinokwanda Media and Communications (Pty) Ltd

24,000

-

Tshedza Media

25,000

-

2,052

-

J and J Productions

16,000

-

The Mavericks Consulting

25,000

-

130,339

-

15,600

-

Constitutional Hill

Cape Town International Animation Festival

Toseto Furnishers Timeless Value
Vortex Training systems CC
Boitshoko Ba Lesego (Pty) Ltd
GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION
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Mar 2018
Restated

Sonrise Entertainment

Spyland Jova Film and Events Company

100

Mar 2019

Ergomonix
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160.000
35,656
759,594

807,011
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Note 22: Detailed Operating Expenses.
Mar 2018
Restated

Mar 2019
R

Management of GFC
Bank Charges
Insurance
Employees Cost

R

23,146,992

23,568,921

27,594

27,257

104,658
18,728,965

94,103

Office Equipment Maintenance

194,105

19,137,697
1,535

Office Rental

732,859

1,596,812

Staff Parking

153,025

294,513

Water and Electricity Charges

205,419

251,570

1,091,495

299,764

19,803

21.303

Printing -General

5,863

Stationery Cost

57,006

5,192
43,317

Assets Write off

72,261

Fines and Penalties

37,473

7,595

Auxiliary Services
Courier and Cartage Cost

Professional Fees
Employee Wellness

602,892
4,733

Organisational Development Cost

69,257

Staff Development Cost

65,500

721,259
4,064
21,708
37,142
172,767

-

6,273

Strategic Planning

134,211

244,377

Special Projects

76,500

-

620,085

580,673

Community Social Initiatives

Development and Maintenance of IT

GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION
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143,288

Study Assistance Cost
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Note 22: Detailed Operating Expenses cont.
Mar 2018
Restated

Mar 2019
R

Legal and Governance

383,518

73,788

43,910

Audit Committee fees

60,500

55,000

224,000

166,000

Remuneration Committee

11,000

36,500

Refreshment and Meetings

66,473

72,608

-

9,500

11,000

-

9,544,468

4,736,192

459,600

308,000

Skills Development and Mentorship

1,266,105

802,584

Project Support

2,237,400

1,985,849

Production for Broadcast

3,545,000

100,000

13,600

-

Bid Committee Fees
Social & Ethics Committee

Industry Support and Development
Distribution Support

Post Production and Research Hub
Audience Development

2,022,763

Marketing and Communications

1,414,030

Annual Report

100,793

Film Content and Export Platform

106,813

Advertising Placements

143,760

Branding Partnership

2,000

Film Awards

181,910

Industry Communication

50,031

Marketing Material

93,849

Marketing Support Films Funding by GFC
GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION
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446,761

Board Training

Directors Remuneration
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R

Message on hold

319,565
7,115

Public Awareness-Townships

206,208

Hosting and Maintenance Website

201,986
34,552,251

		

This information is not for audit purposes
BIG IDEAS. PERFECT LOCATIONS.

1,539,759
1,159,220
94,511
74,409
95,152
28,090
55,000
45,000
62,473
335,316
7,285
139,079
222,905
29,847,850

Notes
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Company Address CompanyPhone
Address
Gauteng Film Commission
Gauteng Film
+27 Commission
11 833 0409
35 Rissik Street
35 Rissik Street
Johannesburg, 2108 Johannesburg, 2108
South Africa
South Africa

Phone
Online
Online
+27 11 833 Email:
0409 info@gautengfilm.org.za
Email: info@gautengfilm.org.za
Website: www.gautengfilm.org.za
Website: www.gautengfilm.org.za

